
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Mar 03 2022 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (Coppergate Elementary School Percussion Club (directed by James Rivera) and Dance Club (directed by
Channing Maltz))

Invocation (Dr. Chris Bonts, First Baptist Church of Middleburg)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognition of 2021-2022 School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year

Presenters

School Showcase (Coppergate Elementary School - Melissa Metz, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

2. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on January 25, 2022; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on
February 3, 2022

2022 Jan 25 Workshop.pdf

2022 Feb 3 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2021 Feb 3 Regular Mtg.pdf

3. C2 - Proclamation #22-11, Clay County Agricultural Fair

Proclamation 22-11 2022 Clay County Fair.pdf

Human Resources

4. C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 3.3.2022.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

5. C4 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

March 2022 - Student Travel.pdf
Page 1 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43441
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=41409
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=41409
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-jan-25-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-feb-3-regular-mtg_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=41414
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-22-11-2022-clay-county-fair.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42441
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-332022.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42447
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-student-travel_1.pdf


6. C5 - Summer Programs Manual and Calendars

March 2022 - 2022 Clay County Summer Programs Manual.pdf

March 2022 - VPK Rising K & K-5 Summer Programs Calendar.pdf

March 2022 - 6th Grade, Jr. High, & High School  Summer Programs Calendar.pdf

March 2022 - Extended School Year (ESY) 2022 Summer Calendar  (1).pdf

7. C6 - Approve Agreement for Establishment of Navy Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps Unit at Oakleaf High
School

NJROTC_OHS Agreement.pdf

8. C7 - Approve St. Johns Classical Academy Charter Renewal

St Johns Classical Academy proposed renewal contract, 2022-2037.pdf

Instruction-Professional Development

9. C8 - St Petersburg College Student Teaching Affiliation Agreement

220075 St Petersburg Col of Ed.pdf

10. C9 - National Center on Education and the Economy’s National Institute for School Leadership (NISL) Program
Agreement

220096 National Center on Education & Economy.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

11. C10 - Proclamation #22-12 to Establish School Social Work Week

2022 School Social Work Week Proclamation.docx.pdf

Business Affairs

12. C11 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2021-22

21 22 Allocation Summary -March 3, 2022.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

13. C12 - Monthly Financial Reports for January, 2022

Jan 2022 Board Monthly Financial Report.pdf

Jan 2022 Board Monthly Property Report.pdf

Contracts 50 Thousand and Greater.pdf

14. C13 - Budget Amendment Report for January 31, 2022

Budget Amendment January 2022.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

15. C14 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - February, 2022

Deletion Report-February, 2022.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

16. C15 - BID to be Awarded

Page 2 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42445
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-2022-clay-county-summer-programs-manual.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-vpk-rising-k-k-5-summer-programs-calendar.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-6th-grade-jr-high-high-school-summer-programs-calendar.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-extended-school-year-esy-2022-summer-calendar-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43445
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43445
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/njrotc_ohs-agreement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43449
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/st-johns-classical-academy-proposed-renewal-contract-2022-2037.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42439
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220075-st-petersburg-col-of-ed.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42444
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42444
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220096-national-center-on-education-economy.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42437
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-school-social-work-week-proclamationdocx_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42417
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/21-22-allocation-summary-march-3-2022_2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43444
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/jan-2022-board-monthly-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/jan-2022-board-monthly-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greater_6.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43442
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-january-2022_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42427
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-february-2022.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43446


17. C16 - Contract Renewal – County Wide Architectural Services up to $2 Million

Operations

18. C17 - Transportation Radio System Refresh

Motorola Solutions.pdf

19. C18 - Interlocal Agreement with the Board of County Commissioners for Transportation Radios with Motorola
Solutions

Operations-Facilities

20. C19 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 3.3.22.pdf

21. C20 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Clay High School Restroom
Renovations

22. C21 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Front
Entrance Security Enhancements

23. C22 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Middleburg High School Roof
Repair/Replacement (Building 1)

24. C23 - Spring Park Elementary School Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Bid Package 2 (Building Construction and
Site Work)

25. C24 - Annual Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) Certification

Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) Certification.pdf

26. C25 - Change Order #1 for Middleburg Transportation Facility Fuel System Repair/Replacement

MB Transportation Fuel System Repair.Replacement CO 1.pdf

27. C26 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Ridgeview High School
Restroom Renovations

28. C27 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for W. E. Cherry Roofing and
Spalling

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update

CESPA Update

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

29. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Special Action A 3.3.2022.pdf (Confidential)

30. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Page 3 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43447
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43443
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/motorola-solutions.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43448
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43448
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42440
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-3322.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42446
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42446
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42448
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42448
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42449
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42449
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42450
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42450
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42452
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/florida-inventory-of-school-houses-fish-certification_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42453
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mb-transportation-fuel-system-repairreplacement-co-1_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42454
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42454
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42455
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42455
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42442
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42443


31. D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

32. D4 - Human Resources Special Action D

33. D5 - Human Resources Special Action E

Instruction-Instructional Resources

34. D6 - Public Hearing and Vote to Approve as Advertised the Adoption of 2021-2022 6-12 Mathematics Materials

2021-2022 6-12 Mathematics Adoption District Committee Recommendation.pdf

2021-2022 6-12 Mathematics Adoption Teacher Reviews and Results.pdf

2021-2022 6-12 Mathematics Adoption Preselection Committee Reviews and Results.pdf

Business Affairs

35. D7 - Proposed Allocations for 2022-2023

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43452
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43450
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=43451
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42433
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-2022-6-12-mathematics-adoption-district-committee-recommendation.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-2022-6-12-mathematics-adoption-teacher-reviews-and-results.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-2022-6-12-mathematics-adoption-preselection-committee-reviews-and-results.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=42426


School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of 2021-2022 School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year

Description
Recognizing the School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes
Recognizing the School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year

Strategic Plan Goal
5.1.11 Develop and implement a school and district-wide employee recognition program.

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on January 25, 2022; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on February 3,
2022

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2022 Jan 25 Workshop.pdf

2022 Feb 3 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2021 Feb 3 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 6 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-jan-25-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-feb-3-regular-mtg_1.pdf


Page 7 of 434

DRAFT



Page 8 of 434

DRAFT



Page 9 of 434

DRAFT



Page 10 of 434

DRAFT



Page 11 of 434

DRAFT



Page 12 of 434

DRAFT



Page 13 of 434

DRAFT



Page 14 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Proclamation #22-11, Clay County Agricultural Fair

Description
Significant events that affect the lives of Clay County students and employees deserve to be recognized by action.  By approving
this Proclamation, the School Board will show support and recognition of the Clay County Agricultural Fair.  
 

Gap Analysis
The School Board endorses this event and hereby encourages all citizens to attend.  The Fair serves as a showcase for Clay
County agriculture with emphasis on educational experiences.  Clay County youth organizations such as 4-H clubs and Future
Farmers of America play an important part in the Fair.

Previous Outcomes
The Fair provides fun and entertainment, as well as educational experiences.

Expected Outcomes
The School Board will continue to support the Clay County Agricultural Fair, and through the Fair, continue to provide fun
entertainment and educational experiences, serving as a showcase for Clay County agriculture.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Proclamation #22-11

Contact
Superintendent David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Proclamation 22-11 2022 Clay County Fair.pdf

Page 15 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-22-11-2022-clay-county-fair.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROCLAMATION # 22-11 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, Clay County will hold its 36th annual Agricultural Fair on March 31- April 10, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the School Board of Clay County endorses this event with the Clay County Fair Association 
and hereby encourages all citizens to attend and enjoy this educational and entertaining event; and 
 
WHEREAS, this fair will serve as a showcase for Clay County agriculture with emphasis on educational 
experience concerning Clay County’s leading industry; and 
 
WHEREAS, various Clay County youth organizations such as 4-H clubs and Future Farmers of America 
play an important part in the Fair; and 
 
WHEREAS, the School Board of Clay County encourages all citizens to demonstrate their support of 
our youth by taking an active interest in their activities at the Fair; and 
 
WHEREAS, Agricultural Fairs provide fun and entertainment as well as education for the entire family; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Clay County Fair Board of Directors, committee members, patron life members and 
many volunteers have done an outstanding job of putting together the Clay County Agricultural Fair 
which will provide entertainment and educational experiences for children and adults of all ages. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, fully supports, 
celebrates, and encourages all citizens to attend and enjoy the 36th annual Clay County Agricultural 
Fair. 
 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 3rd day of March, 
2022. 
        
 
 
ATTEST:       

 
             
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
David S.Broskie                        Mary S. Bolla, School Board Chair 
Superintendent of Schools         
Clay County, Florida  

Page 16 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.
Initiative 5.1.1 - Recruit and retain highly skilled, qualified, and diverse educators, leaders, and support staff.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda 3.3.2022.pdf

Page 17 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-332022.pdf


Page 18 of 434

DRAFT



Page 19 of 434

DRAFT



Page 20 of 434

DRAFT



Page 21 of 434

DRAFT



Page 22 of 434

DRAFT



Page 23 of 434

DRAFT



Page 24 of 434

DRAFT



Page 25 of 434

DRAFT



Page 26 of 434

DRAFT



Page 27 of 434

DRAFT



Page 28 of 434

DRAFT



Page 29 of 434

DRAFT



Page 30 of 434

DRAFT



Page 31 of 434

DRAFT



Page 32 of 434

DRAFT



Page 33 of 434

DRAFT



Page 34 of 434

DRAFT



Page 35 of 434

DRAFT



Page 36 of 434

DRAFT



Page 37 of 434

DRAFT



Page 38 of 434

DRAFT



Page 39 of 434

DRAFT



Page 40 of 434

DRAFT



Page 41 of 434

DRAFT



Page 42 of 434

DRAFT



Page 43 of 434

DRAFT



Page 44 of 434

DRAFT



Page 45 of 434

DRAFT



Page 46 of 434

DRAFT



Page 47 of 434

DRAFT



Page 48 of 434

DRAFT



Page 49 of 434

DRAFT



Page 50 of 434

DRAFT



Page 51 of 434

DRAFT



Page 52 of 434

DRAFT



Page 53 of 434

DRAFT



Page 54 of 434

DRAFT



Page 55 of 434

DRAFT



Page 56 of 434

DRAFT



Page 57 of 434

DRAFT



Page 58 of 434

DRAFT



Page 59 of 434

DRAFT



Page 60 of 434

DRAFT



Page 61 of 434

DRAFT



Page 62 of 434

DRAFT



Page 63 of 434

DRAFT



Page 64 of 434

DRAFT



Page 65 of 434

DRAFT



Page 66 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Page 67 of 434

DRAFT



Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose
Orange Park
Elementary

5/12/22 Valdosta, GA 6th Grade 6th Grade Trip

Fleming Island
High

2/11-12,
2022

USF - St.
Pete Campus

Ocean
Science
Bowl Team

Students will demonstrate their mastery of marine
and oceanic science in a quiz bowl competition.

Keystone
Heights High

4/8/22 Valdosta, GA

FBLA/Hono
r
Society/HO
SA

This trip serves as a reward for members who
competed and placed in District Competitions, but
due to covid will not be attending a State Meet.

Keystone
Heights High

2/18-19,
2022

Panama City,
FL

Girls
Wrestling

Regional Tournament

Middleburg High
3/25-26,
2022

Montverde,
FL

Softball
Team

Softball Tournament

Middleburg High 3/4-7, 2022 Orlando, FL Culinary
Students practice cooking a restaurant quality meal
under competition settings.

Oakleaf High
2/11-12,
2022

Osceola, FL
JV
Wrestling
Team

FHSAA Junior Varsity State Tournament

Oakleaf High
2/18-19,
2022

Lynn Haven,
FL

Girls
Wrestling
Team

FHSAA Girls Regionals

Oakleaf High 3/2-5, 2022
Kissimmee,
FL

Varsity
Boys &
Girls
Wrestling

FHSAA State Wrestling Championships

Oakleaf High
3/31-4/2,
2022

Kissimmee,
FL

Softball
Team

Softball Tournament

Oakleaf High
3/11-13,
2022

FIU
Model
United
Nation

Provide students with leadership and research skills
to help develop the leaders and thinkers of
tomorrow.

Oakleaf High 2/9/22
Savannah,
GA

NJROTC Campus Visit.

Orange Park
High

3/4-5, 2022 Douglas, GA NJROTC Drill Meet Championship

ONECLAY
Robotics

3/4-5, 2022
Winter
Haven, FL

Robotics
Teams
(WJH, FIH,
OPH, RHS)

Robotics Competitions

ONECLAY
A.R.M.O.R.Y.
Robotics Team

3/9-
12,2022

UCF
Robotics
Teams

Robotics Competitions 

Ridgeview High
2/9-10,
2022

Pensacola,
FL

Boys
Varsity
Soccer

Regional Playoffs

Page 68 of 434

DRAFT



         

 

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum & Instruction; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

March 2022 - Student Travel.pdf

Page 69 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-student-travel_1.pdf


Page 70 of 434

DRAFT



Page 71 of 434

DRAFT



Page 72 of 434

DRAFT



Page 73 of 434

DRAFT



Page 74 of 434

DRAFT



Page 75 of 434

DRAFT



Page 76 of 434

DRAFT



Page 77 of 434

DRAFT



Page 78 of 434

DRAFT



Page 79 of 434

DRAFT



Page 80 of 434

DRAFT



Page 81 of 434

DRAFT



Page 82 of 434

DRAFT



Page 83 of 434

DRAFT



Page 84 of 434

DRAFT



Page 85 of 434

DRAFT



Page 86 of 434

DRAFT



Page 87 of 434

DRAFT



Page 88 of 434

DRAFT



Page 89 of 434

DRAFT



Page 90 of 434

DRAFT



Page 91 of 434

DRAFT



Page 92 of 434

DRAFT



Page 93 of 434

DRAFT



Page 94 of 434

DRAFT



Page 95 of 434

DRAFT



Page 96 of 434

DRAFT



Page 97 of 434

DRAFT



Page 98 of 434

DRAFT



Page 99 of 434

DRAFT



Page 100 of 434

DRAFT



Page 101 of 434

DRAFT



Page 102 of 434

DRAFT



Page 103 of 434

DRAFT



Page 104 of 434

DRAFT



Page 105 of 434

DRAFT



Page 106 of 434

DRAFT



Page 107 of 434

DRAFT



Page 108 of 434

DRAFT



Page 109 of 434

DRAFT



Page 110 of 434

DRAFT



Page 111 of 434

DRAFT



Page 112 of 434

DRAFT



Page 113 of 434

DRAFT



Page 114 of 434

DRAFT



Page 115 of 434

DRAFT



Page 116 of 434

DRAFT



Page 117 of 434

DRAFT



Page 118 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Summer Programs Manual and Calendars

Description
Each year, Clay County hosts several summer programs for the educational benefit of students.  These programs are
fundamentally designed to either remediate students or to maintain educational levels.  These programs range from pre-
kindergarten to high school levels.  Programs are held at various sites and virtually in the District and have approved guidelines
attached to each program.  Special education students have access to each program sponsored.
 

Gap Analysis
By offering these programs, the District will help keep students progressing forward either in their reading skills or seeking
grade/credit recovery.  The benefit of these programs mostly impacts struggling or at-risk students.  
 

Previous Outcomes
Students in all of the programs either retained learning levels or increased learning levels due to the summer programs being
offered.  At the junior high level, students were able to be promoted due to the passage of courses offered during this summer
period. Similarly, students in grades 9-12 recouped credits due to the summer high school program.  This enables the students to
recoup credits or to maintain a pace so that receiving a high school diploma is possible.    
                                                     

Expected Outcomes
Students will continue to increase learning levels or recoup credits/courses in all programs.  Programs that are offered (with the
targeted audiences) are:

Voluntary Pre-K: Children who will be 4-years old on or before 9/1/21 and have not used any portion of a Certificate of
Eligibility from any Florida coalition during the 21-22 year;

-

Summer Reading Camp: students eligible include: rising K, K, 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, and 5th grade students;-
6th grade and Junior High: students seeking to recover failed courses (virtual);-
High School: 9-12 students seeking credit recovery (virtual);-
Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE Only; Students with disabilities who failed this course;-
Algebra 1 "Boot Camp"; students who have not passed the Algebra 1 EOC.  This is a review session;-
11th-12th Grade ESOL; ELL students scoring level 1 or 2 on the ELA FSA;-
ESE Extended School Year: ESE students who have been determined to need ESY services;-
Bannerman Learning Center:  6th - 12th grade students who are seeking to recover one or less credits to be promoted.-

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal:   Develop a High Quality and Aligned Instructional System
Strategy:  1.1.4 Explore innovative program options for rigorous opportunities at the elementary and secondary levels.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the Summer Program Manual and the Calendar

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Treasure Pickett, Director K-12 Academic Services, 904-336-6918, treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Page 119 of 434

DRAFT



Financial Impact
$250,000.00

Review Comments

Attachments

March 2022 - 2022 Clay County Summer Programs Manual.pdf

March 2022 - VPK Rising K & K-5 Summer Programs Calendar.pdf

March 2022 - 6th Grade, Jr. High, & High School  Summer Programs Calendar.pdf

March 2022 - Extended School Year (ESY) 2022 Summer Calendar  (1).pdf

Page 120 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-2022-clay-county-summer-programs-manual.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-vpk-rising-k-k-5-summer-programs-calendar.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-6th-grade-jr-high-high-school-summer-programs-calendar.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2022-extended-school-year-esy-2022-summer-calendar-1.pdf


The Manual

Page 121 of 434

DRAFT



Clay County School Board Members

District I

The Honorable Janice Kerekes

District II

The Honorable Mary Bolla, Chairman

District III

The Honorable Beth Clark

District IV

The Honorable Tina Bullock

District V

The Honorable Ashley Gilhousen

Superintendent of Schools

The Honorable David Broskie

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 1

Page 122 of 434

DRAFT



Table of Contents

Table of Contents 2

2022 Summer Programs Overview 3

Summer Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Program (SVPK) 5

Rising K - 5th Grade Summer Reading Camp 8

6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery 11

High School Credit Recovery 14

Bannerman Learning Center (BLC) Virtual Positions 17

Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE ONLY 18

Algebra 1 Boot Camp 21

11th- 12th Grade ESOL Summer Language Program 23

ESE Extended School Year 26

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 2

Page 123 of 434

DRAFT



2022 Summer Programs Overview
VPK and Rising K - 5th Grade Summer Reading Camp Calendar

6th - 12th Grade Credit Recovery Calendar

Extended School Year (ESY) Calendar

Summer Programs Website

Program Dates Audience Description of
Program

Sites Funding
Source

Voluntary Pre-K
Summer Program

Program Details
pp. 5 - 7

Teacher &
Assistant:

Mon-Fri
6/1/22-7/29/22

Students:
Mon-Fri

6/2/22- 7/29/22

No school on 7/4/22

Children who will be 4 years old
on or before September 1, 2021
and have not used any portion of
a Certificate of Eligibility from any

Florida coalition during the
2021-22 school year. The goal of

SVPK is to prepare young
scholars for school readiness.

Summer VPK
*free school site program
*evidence-based
curriculum
*evidence-based
instruction
*breakfast and lunch
served

Doctors Inlet  (DIS) Project
1458

Fund 100

Rising K, K, 1st,
2nd, 3rd, 4th, &

5th Grade
Summer Reading

Camp

Program Details
pp. 8 - 10

Teachers &
Assistants:
Mon-Thurs

6/13/22-
7/21/22

Students:
Mon-Thurs

6/14/22- 7/21/22

No school on 7/4/22

Eligibility for Summer Reading
Camp (SRC) is determined by
state and district assessment
data. Per state statute, 3rd

grade students attending SRC
will be assigned to a reading

endorsed teacher. The goal of
the SRC is to promote the

development of foundational
reading skills to close
achievement gaps.

Summer Reading
Camp

*free school site
program
*supports rising
kindergarten- 5th
grade students
*evidence-based
curriculum
*evidence-based
instruction
*breakfast and lunch
served
*transportation
provided

Charles E. Bennett (CEB)
Doctors Inlet (DIS)
Grove Park (GPE)

McRae (MRE)
Oakleaf Village (OVE)

Wilkinson (WES)

NOTE:  Reading Camp
teachers must be either
Reading Endorsed or Reading
Certified s.1011.62(8)(a)(5).
3rd grade SRC teachers must
also be highly effective
s.1008.25(7). Inclusion
teachers must also be ESE
Certified.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2022

Fund 443

6th Grade &
Junior High Credit

Recovery

Program Details
pp. 11 - 13

Teachers:
Mon-Thurs

6/9/22-7/12/22

Students:
Mon-Thurs

6/13/22-7/11/22

6th-8th grade students* who are
seeking to recover one or less
credits/courses to be promoted

*Standard diploma, including
students with disabilities in

inclusion and self-contained
classrooms

Students will use
Edgenuity Software for

16 days in a virtual
learning setting, with
instruction delivered

virtually.

Program will be offered
through a virtual platform.
Please contact the school

concerning registration and
other required information.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2022

Fund 443

High School
Credit Recovery

Program Details
pp. 14 - 16

Teachers:
Mon-Thurs

6/9/22-7/12/22

Students:
Mon-Thurs

6/13/22-7/11/22

9th-12th grade students* who are
seeking to recover one or less
credits/courses to be promoted

*Standard diploma, including
students with disabilities in

inclusion and self-contained
classrooms

Students will use
Edgenuity software for 16
days, 8 days if only a ½

credit is needed, in a
virtual learning setting,

with instruction delivered
virtually.

Program will be offered
through a virtual platform.
Please contact the school

concerning registration and
other required information.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2022

Fund 443

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 3

Page 124 of 434

DRAFT



Bannerman
Learning Center

Program

Program Details
pp. 17

Teachers &
Students

Mon & Tues
6/13/2022-

7/26/22
Teacher Hours-

7:30-12:00
Student Hours

8:00-12:00

6th-12th grade students* who are
seeking to recover one or less
credits/courses to be promoted

*Standard diploma, including
students with disabilities in

inclusion and self-contained
classrooms

Students will use
Edgenuity software for 12
days in a virtual learning
setting, with instruction

delivered virtually.

Program will be offered
through a virtual platform.
Please contact the school

concerning registration and
other required information.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2022

Fund 443

Program Dates Audience Description of
Program

Sites Funding
Source

Algebra I Credit
Recovery for ESE

ONLY

Program Details
pp. 18 - 20

Teachers:
6/13/2022- 7/12/2022

Students &
Assistants:

6/14/2022- 7/12/2022

No school on
7/4/2022

Students with disabilities who are
seeking to recover Algebra 1

credit and/or did not successfully
pass the Algebra 1

End-of-Course (EOC)
Assessment

A free program providing
students with disabilities
with every opportunity to

pass the Algebra 1
End-of-Course (EOC)

Assessment

KHH
OHS
MHS

Transportation will be provided
for all students.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2022

Fund 443

Algebra I Boot
Camp

Program Details
pp. 21 -22

Alg 1 Boot Camp
Forms

Teachers:
4 Days

Planning Day
7/12/22

7/12,13,14/22
7/18-19/22

Students:
7/13-14/22
7/18-19/22

Students* who did not
successfully pass the Algebra 1

End-of-Course (EOC)
Assessment

*Standard diploma, including
students with disabilities in

inclusion and self-contained
classrooms

A program offered face to
face that provides

students with every
opportunity to pass the

Algebra 1 End-of-Course
(EOC) Assessment

Program will be offered face to
face at the home school (high

schools only)
Grant

4813 June
and July

2022

Fund 443

11th-12th ESOL
Summer

Language
Program

Program Details
pp. 23 - 25

11th and 12th
Grade ESOL

Forms

Teachers:
Mon-Thurs

6/9/22- 6/23/22

Students:
Mon-Thurs

6/13/22 -6/23/22

English Language Learners
(ELLs) categorized as a new

arrival, non-English speaker, or
as recommended

A free summer language
program offered virtually

providing ELLs the
opportunity to enhance
the English Language
skills needed to pass

assessments required to
earn a high school

diploma

Program will be offered
virtually via synchronous

sessions

Grant
4813 June
and July

2022

Fund 443

ESE Extended
School Year

Program Details
pp. 26 - 28

ESE ESY
Calendar

Teachers & Nurses:
6/9/2022-
7/14/2022

Students &
Assistants:

Monday/Wednesday
6/13/2022-
7/13/2022

Tuesday/Thursday
6/14/2022-
7/14/2022

Students with disabilities who
have been determined to need

ESY services based on IEP team
determination.

The ESY calendar is a general
framework for services; The
IEP team makes the decision

regarding ESY services
necessary for the provision of

FAPE.

Extended school year
services are available to

provide a Free
Appropriate Public

Education (FAPE) for
students with disabilities

*ESY Sites
McRae Elementary.
Lake Asbury Jr. High

Bannerman Learning Center

*Students are assigned to an
ESY site based on their
needs.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2022

Fund 443

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 4

Page 125 of 434

DRAFT



Summer Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Program (SVPK)

District Contact

Bianca Montoro 904-336-6965 bianca.montoro@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

Doctors Inlet
Elementary

Entire school district Students will be
provided breakfast,
lunch, and a snack
during the program.

Free

Summer Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Program Calendar

Teacher &
Assistant

Teacher & Assistant Key Pickup, Curriculum Professional Learning, and
Planning

● Doctors Inlet Elementary, 6/1/22, 8:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m. (Wednesday)
Teacher & Assistant Operating Dates

● Doctors Inlet Elementary, 6/2/22-7/29/22, 7:30 a.m.-4:00 p.m.
(Monday-Friday)

Students Operating Dates, 6/2/2022-7/29/2022, 8:00 a.m. - 3:30 p.m.  (Monday-Friday)

Important Dates No School on 7/4/2022 (Monday)

Student Registration

Student Eligibility
The SVPK is a free, eight-week summer learning program that provides instruction to students,
preparing them for school readiness and success. The SVPK program enhances students'
pre-reading, pre-math, language, and social skills.

Eligible participants must be 4 years old on or before September 1, 2021 and have not used any
portion of a Certificate of Eligibility from any Florida coalition during the 2021-2022 school year.

Student Notification
Parents can access the 2022 Summer VPK Flyer with registration information on the District VPK
Website, www.oneclay.net/vpk

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 5

Page 126 of 434

DRAFT



Student Registration
To register, parents must obtain a Summer Certificate of Eligibility from the Florida Early Learning
Coalition at https://familyservices.floridaearlylearning.com/. The parent must then take the Certificate
of Eligibility, along with the other required Clay County registration documents, to the VPK Summer
School location to register the child into the SVPK program.

Curriculum & Instruction

Time 8:00 a.m.-3:30 p.m.

Curriculum Early Literacy and Learning Model/Plus (ELLM/Plus)
Florida Early Learning and Developmental Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

Direct, explicit, multisensory instruction: oral language, vocabulary,
phonological awareness, math (emergent literacy and math)

Materials
Vocabulary rich readers for dialogic reading, manipulatives for phonological
awareness and math instruction, letter naming cards, realia for building
background and schema

Assessment
Screening: Florida VPK Assessment
Progress Monitoring: Teacher-developed records
Outcome Measure: Florida VPK Assessment

Student Policies

Student Code of Conduct
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings.

Attendance
Students may not be absent for more than 5 days. In addition, repeated tardy or late pick-up (three or
more) may also result in the student being dropped from the Summer VPK program.

Student Records

Initiating Summer VPK Student Records
VPK student records will be created upon completion of the district Summer VPK registration
process. VPK student records will be stored in digital cum folders and shared electronically with
Doctors Inlet Elementary. Doctors Inlet Elementary staff will submit each student’s completed
Certificate of Eligibility (COE) to Bianca Montoro. The Summer VPK teacher will administer the VPK
Assessment during the first and last week of the Summer VPK program. The VPK teacher will record
assessment results in the Bright Beginnings database.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 6

Page 127 of 434

DRAFT



Closing Out Summer VPK Student Records
The Summer VPK teacher will report student progress on the Florida VPK Assessment to families.

VPK Budget and Finance

Voluntary Prekindergarten – Fund 100 Function 5500 Project 1458 - June and July 2022

● VPK Summer Teachers 100-5500128-cost center-1458-0000-000-0

● VPK Summer Assistant 100-5500158-cost center-1458-0000-000-0

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 7

Page 128 of 434

DRAFT



Rising K - 5th Grade Summer Reading Camp

District Contact

Bianca Montoro 904-336-6965 bianca.montoro@myoneclay.net

Locations Feeders Meals Cost

Program will be offered at
CEB, DIS, GPE, MRE, OVE,
and WES. Students attending
the Summer Reading Camp
will be assigned to a teacher at
one of the program sites.

The twenty-seven
elementary schools will be
divided into six regions to
determine which of the six

SRC schools sites will
service the identified SRC

students.

Students will be provided
breakfast and lunch
during the program.

Free

Rising K, K, 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, & 5th Grade Summer Reading Camp Calendar

Teachers &
Assistants

Teachers & Assistants SRC Curriculum Professional Learning
● Rising K-2, 6/8/22, TTC Main Room, 8:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m. (Wednesday)
● 3-5, 6/9/22, TTC Main Room, 8:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m. (Thursday)

Teachers & Assistants Pre Planning & Key Pickup
● Rising K-5, 6/13/22, Assigned SRC School Sites, 9 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

(Monday)
Teachers & Assistants Operating Dates

● Rising K-5, 6/14/22-7/21/22, Assigned SRC School Sites, 7:30 a.m.-1:30
p.m. (Monday-Thursday)

Teacher & Assistant Post Planning & Key Turn-in
● Rising K-5, 7/21/22, Assigned SRC School Sites, 1:30 p.m.-3:30 p.m.

(Thursday)

NOTE:  Reading Camp teachers must be either Reading Endorsed or Reading
Certified s.1011.62(8)(a)(5). 3rd grade SRC teachers must also be highly
effective s.1008.25(7). Inclusion teachers must also be ESE Certified.

Students Operating Dates, 6/14/22-7/21/22, 8:00 a.m.-1:00 p.m. (Monday-Thursday)

Important Dates No School on 7/4/22 (Monday)

Attendance
(Per page 44 of
the CCDS
2020-2022
Student

The district policy for Summer Reading Camp attendance requires that students
not miss more than two days of camp. In the event a student is absent more
than two days he/she will be dropped from summer reading camp. 3rd grade
students who are dropped from the Summer Reading Camp due to attendance
will not have the opportunity to take the SAT-10 test at the conclusion of camp.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 8

Page 129 of 434

DRAFT



Progression
Plan.

In addition, repeated tardy or late pick-up (three or more) will also result in the
student being dropped from the Summer Reading Camp program. This
attendance policy is in place to ensure that students are provided with
maximum time for intensive reading instruction and intervention.

Student Registration

Eligibility
Eligibility for Summer Reading Camp (SRC) is determined by state and district assessment data.
Per state statute, 3rd grade students attending SRC will be assigned to a reading endorsed
teacher. The goal of the SRC is to promote the development of foundational reading skills to close
achievement gaps.

Notification
School site administrators will notify and call students and establish the school of attendance via a
parent letter: Sample Rising K-5 Parent Notification Letter.

Registration
Once eligible students are invited, parents will complete the online registration, via the link embedded
in the notification letter. School sites will assist parents with online registration if needed. If a parent
does not have access to the internet, they can give verbal acknowledgement of attendance and the
school will enroll them.

Curriculum & Instruction

Time 8:00 a.m.-1:00 p.m.

Curriculum Florida's Benchmarks for Excellent Student Thinking (B.E.S.T.) Standards for
English Language Arts (ELA)

Instructional
Methodologies

Brick and Mortar Learning Environment: Whole Group: Direct, Explicit Instruction
using the Gradual Release of Responsibility Model to support a universal design
of learning for inclusivity. Small Group: Direct, Explicit, Systematic Instruction
using multisensory modalities for phonological awareness, phonics, vocabulary,
fluency, and comprehension.

Materials ● Heggerty’s Phonological Awareness & Phonemic Awareness
● Lexia Core 5
● From Phonics to Reading
● Decodables
● B.E.S.T. Booklist Books for Read Alouds
● Corrective Reading
● Fundations
● Multisensory Foundational Skill Building Manipulatives for Reading
● Sound Walls

Assessment Screening: Acadience Reading, Heggerty Phonemic Awareness Assessment

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 9

Page 130 of 434

DRAFT



Progress Monitoring: Lexia Core 5, Acadience Reading, Heggerty Phonemic
Awareness Assessment
Summative: Acadience Reading, Heggerty Phonemic Awareness Assessment,
SAT-10 (Grade 3 Only)

Student Records

Initiating Summer Reading Camp Records
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will provide Summer Reading Camp teachers with
available student academic and registration information. SRC teachers will monitor student growth
using a variety of assessments. SRC teachers will update student assessment data in the
assessment HUB. SRC teachers will communicate beginning, mid, and end of SRC assessment data
with students and their families.

For students with medical needs, refer to the process outlined in the Student Health Care Section of
the ESY Task Instructions, which can be found in the Extended School Year section of this manual.

Closing Out Summer Reading Camp Student Screening and Progress Monitoring Records
Summer Reading Camp teachers will ensure beginning, mid, and end of SRC assessment data has
been entered into the assessment HUB. 3rd grade student performance on the SAT-10 will be
provided to the principal to communicate to families.

Rising K - 5th Grade Reading Camp Budget and Finance

Rising K - 5th Grade Reading Camp – Fund 443 Function 5100 Grant 4813 Program 801 - June and
July 2022

● 443-5100128-cost center -0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5100158-cost center -0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 10

Page 131 of 434

DRAFT



6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery

District Contact

Treasure Pickett 904-336-6918 treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

All students will
participate in a virtual
program and will be

assigned to the
appropriate class and

teacher.

Entire School District Meals not
provided Free

6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery Calendar

Teachers Teacher Planning, 6/9/22; Postplanning 7/12/22
● Virtual Google Meet for training/preplanning 8:30 a.m. - 11:30 a.m.
● Post planning to finalize and post grades 8:00-11:00 a.m.

Students Operating Dates, 6/13/22 - 7/11/22,
Mon & Wed - 2 pm - 7 pm
Tues & Thurs - 8 am - 1 pm

Assistants
if applicable

Operating Dates, 6/13/22-7/11/22,
Mon & Wed- 2 pm-7 pm
Tues & Thurs- 8 am-1 pm

Important Dates No School or Teacher Contact on 7/4/22

Student Registration

Eligibility
The secondary summer program is for 6th - 8th grade students who are seeking to recover one or
fewer credits/courses for promotional purposes. Summer grade recovery or course retake will be
provided using an online software program for 16 days, in a virtual learning setting, with instruction
delivered virtually.

If more than 2 half credits are needed, students may retake a failed course through CVA. If a
student needs an elective to be promoted or to graduate, the school can approve Clay Virtual as an
option to obtain a second credit/course or an elective.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 11

Page 132 of 434

DRAFT



6th grade students who have failed one course must attend summer school.  Students in 6th grade
needing to retake a subject will be assigned to one of the virtual teachers.  Elementary schools will
provide parents with the information via a parent letter (see link to a sample letter in the notification
section below).

Notification
The district will identify eligible students by June 6th. Schools will contact students and parents who
qualify via a parent email in order to ensure their attendance.  If the parent/guardian has a concern
about whether or not their child has passed a particular class, the District encourages the
parent/guardian to contact the school prior to the June 11th start date.  Sample parent letters are
provided for: 6th graders, and junior high students.

Registration
School counselors and school administrators will register students who earned a “D” or an “F” for
summer school.  Parents and students will be notified by email that they qualify for summer school.

Curriculum & Instruction

Time Mon & Wed- 2 pm-7pm; Tues & Thurs-8 am-1 pm

Curriculum Florida Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

Individualized teacher facilitation, and independent practice

Materials Edgenuity

Assessment Screening: End of course grades
Progress Monitoring: Online software program data and teacher-developed
records
Outcome Measure: End of course grades for summer school course work

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration
information.  The student’s home school will report grades from the 2021-22 school year to the school
of attendance for summer grade recovery.

Closing Out Summer School Records
The summer school teacher will report the student’s end-of-course grades in a shared Google Doc for
summer school coursework.  School counselors will sort the Google Doc to capture their school’s
students and input grades into Synergy.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 12

Page 133 of 434

DRAFT



6th Grade & Junior Budget and Finance

6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery- Fund 443, Grant 4813, and Program 801 - June and July
2022

● 443-5100128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5100158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 13

Page 134 of 434

DRAFT



High School Credit Recovery

District Contact

Treasure Pickett 904-336-6918 treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

Program is Offered Virtually. Students should
register online.
Students will be
assigned to the

appropriate
class and
teacher.

Meals not provided Free

High School Credit Recovery Calendar

Teachers Teacher Planning, 6/9/22; 7/12/22
● 6/9-  Virtual Google Meeting for training,  8:30 a.m. - 11:30 a.m.
● 7/12- Final Planning day to finalize and post grades (8:00-11:00)

Operating Dates: 6/13/22 - 7/11/22, Mon & Wed: 2 pm-7 pm; Tues & Thurs: 8
am - 1 pm.

Students Operating Dates: 6/13/22 - 7/11/22, Mon & Wed:  2 pm - 7 pm; Tues & Thurs:
8am - 1 pm.

Assistants
if applicable

Operating Dates: 6/13/22 - 7/11/22, Mon & Wed: 2 pm - 7 pm; Tues & Thurs:
8am - 1 pm.

Important Dates No School/Teacher Contact on 7/4/22

Student Registration

Eligibility
The secondary summer program is for 9th-12th grade students who are seeking to recover one or
fewer credits/courses for promotional purposes. Summer grade recovery or course retake will be
provided using an online software program for 16 days, in a virtual learning setting, with instruction
delivered virtually.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 14

Page 135 of 434

DRAFT



Each course recovered through the online software program requires 16 summer school days to
recover, therefore, if two courses need to be recovered, one of these courses will need to be taken
via virtual offerings outside of the summer school day (CVA).  If a student needs an elective to be
promoted or to graduate, the school can approve Clay Virtual as an option to obtain a second
credit/course or an elective.

Notification
The district will identify eligible students by June 6th. Schools will contact students who qualify via a
parent email in order to ensure their attendance.  Sample parent letters are provided for high school
students.  Please edit the fields indicated to reflect the correct information for your school site.

Registration
School  counselors and school administrators will register students who earned a “D” or an “F” for
summer school.  Parents and students will be notified by email that they qualify for summer school.

Curriculum & Instruction

Time Mon & Wed- 2 pm-7 pm; Tues & Thurs- 8 am-1 pm

Curriculum Florida Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

virtual individualized teacher facilitation, and independent practice

Materials Online Software Program

Assessment Screening: End of course grades
Progress Monitoring: Curriculum software data and teacher-developed
records
Outcome Measure: End of course grades for summer school course work

High School Eligibility

Course Credit Options
Students needing may take one ½ credit or two ½ credits during the 16-day summer school session.

Student Code of Conduct
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies concerning appropriate technology usages are to be followed
during all summer school offerings.

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration
information. The teacher will be provided with student grades from the 2021-22 school year for each
student.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 15

Page 136 of 434

DRAFT



Closing Out Summer School Records
The summer school teacher will report the end of course grades for summer school coursework,
which will be reflected in the student’s record.

High School Budget and Finance

High School – Credit Recovery - Fund 443 Function 5100 Grant 4813 Program 801 - June and July
2022

● 443-5100128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5100158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 16

Page 137 of 434

DRAFT



Bannerman Learning Center (BLC) Virtual Positions

Virtual Positions Contact/Supervisory Site Position Description

2 Credit Recovery
Teachers

(Any Cert.)

mark.mckinney@myoneclay.net
BLC

Virtual Delivery
Student Hours: Mon - Tues - 8:00am -

12:00pm
Teacher Hours: Mon - Tues - 7:30am -

12:00pm

CALENDAR: 6/13,14,20,21,27,28 and 7/11,12,18,19,25,26 = 12 student days

Bannerman Learning Center Budget and Finance

High School - Credit Recovery - Fund 443 Function 5100/5200 Grant 4813 Program 801 - June and
July 2022

● 443-5100128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5200128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for ESE teachers

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 17

Page 138 of 434

DRAFT



Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE ONLY

District Contact

Renee’ Kemp 904-336-6877 jacqueline.kemp@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

KHH
OHS
MHS
Transportation will be
provided for all students

Entire school district Meals not provided Free

Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE Only

Teachers Report to assigned school for training/planning Monday, 6/13/2022, 8:00
a.m.-11:00 a.m
Virtual Training, Monday, 6/13/2022,8:00 a.m. - 9:00 a.m.
Operating Dates, 6/13/2022 - 7/12/2022, 7:45 a.m.-11:45 a.m. (Monday -
Thursday)

Students Operating Dates, 6/14/2022 - 7/12/2022, 8:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. (Monday -
Thursday)

Assistants
if applicable

Operating Dates, 6/14/2022 - 7/12/2022, 8:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. (Monday -
Thursday)

Important Dates No School on 7/4/2022

Student Registration

Eligibility
ESE Only Algebra 1 Credit Recovery is available for students with disabilities who are seeking to
recover Algebra 1 credit and/or did not successfully pass the Algebra 1 End-of-Course (EOC)
Assessment.

Notification
The IEP team, including the parent, determines the need for extended school year services along
with the location for services.  Once it is determined that a student requires Algebra 1 Credit
Recovery for ESE ONLY, the details of the program will be provided to the parent via the ESE
teacher.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 18

Page 139 of 434

DRAFT



Registration
Registration will be completed in collaboration with IEP teams at school sites.

Curriculum & Instruction

Time 8:00 a.m.-11:30 a.m.

Curriculum Florida Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

Direct Instruction provided through whole class, small group, independent
practice as well as the use of collaborative online tools in real time

Materials Textbooks & standards-based materials, online tools

Assessment Screening: Most recent Algebra 1 EOC data
Progress Monitoring: Formative Assessment data and teacher-developed
records
Outcome Measure: Algebra 1 EOC Retake data

Student Policies

Attendance
Students are encouraged to attend all days assigned to a course.

Student Code of Conduct
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings.

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
The teacher will be notified of student needs based on each student’s IEP, Algebra 1 EOC scores,
and student grades from the 2021-2022 school year.

Closing Out Summer School Records
The Support Facilitator and/or ESE teacher will update the student’s goals and objectives in the IEP,
and the summer school teacher will report end of course grades for summer school course work,
which will be reflected in the student’s record.

Alg 1 ESE Budget and Finance

High School – Algebra 1 Credit Recovery – for ESE ONLY - Func 5200 Grant 4813 Program 801 -
June and July 2022

● 443-5200128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5200158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 19

Page 140 of 434

DRAFT



Algebra 1 Boot Camp

District Contact

Treasure Pickett 904-336-6918 Treasure.Pickett@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

Program will be offered
face-to-face

(if spring scores have not
been released, this camp

may not be applicable)

Students will register
online

Meals not provided Free

Algebra 1 Boot Camp Calendar

Teachers Teacher Planning, 7/12/22; 12:00-3:00
Operating Dates, 4 days- 7/13,14,18 & 19- 7:45 a.m. - 11:15 a.m.

Students Operating Dates, 4 days- 7/13,14,18 & 19- 8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. (Contact
time with Teacher)

Assistants
if applicable

Operating Dates,  7/13, 14, 18 & 19-  8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m.

Important Dates

Student Registration

Eligibility
Students who did not successfully pass the Algebra 1 End-of-Course (EOC) Assessment will have
the opportunity to attend Algebra 1 Boot Camp. In addition, students who wish to retake the EOC in
order to achieve a higher score to improve their final grade (only a “D” or “F”) may do so.

Notification
Schools will contact all students who qualify via a parent letter and/or a phone call.

Registration
School counselors and school administrators will register students who earned a “D” or an “F” for
summer school.  Parents and students will be notified by email that they qualify for summer school.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 20

Page 141 of 434

DRAFT



Curriculum & Instruction

Time 8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. Contact Time with Teacher

Curriculum Florida Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

face to face instruction

Materials standards-based materials

Assessment Screening: Most recent Algebra 1 EOC data
Progress Monitoring: Formative Assessment data and teacher-developed
records
Outcome Measure: Algebra 1 EOC Retake data

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration
information. The teacher will be provided with each student’s Algebra 1 EOC scores and student
grades from the 2021-22 school year.

Closing Out Summer School Records
The summer school teacher will report the end of course grades for summer school coursework,
which will be reflected in the student’s record.

Alg 1 Boot Camp Budget and Finance

High School – Algebra 1 Boot Camp Fund 443 Grant 4813 Program 801 - June and July 2022

● 443-5100128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5100158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 21

Page 142 of 434

DRAFT



11th- 12th Grade ESOL Summer Language Program

District Contact

Renee Hatcher 904-336-6962 renee.hatcher@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

Program Offered
Virtually

Entire school district Meals not provided Free

11th - 12th Grade ESOL Summer Reading Program

Teachers Virtual Teacher Planning: 6/9/2022, 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.
Operating Dates: 6/13/2022 - 6/23/2022, 7:45 a.m. - 12:15 p.m. (Monday -
Thursday)

Students Operating Dates: 6/13/2022 - 6/23/2022 (Teacher Contact Times) 8:00am -
12:00pm

Important Dates

Student Registration

Eligibility
The ESOL Summer Reading Program is a language program that offers currently enrolled ESOL
students entering 11th or 12th grade, or existing 12th graders who will earn a certificate of completion
in 2022, the opportunity to enhance their English Language proficiency in an effort to pass the
required assessments to earn a high school diploma. English Language Learners (ELLs) who are
new arrivals, non-English speakers, or those students who have not passed the ACT or SAT will be
eligible to attend.

Notification
Schools will provide eligible students with an informational flyer to apply for the program. School
Counselors will ensure that eligible ELL students receive the information. Should a parent need
translation assistance, they can contact the district ESOL office, or Google Translate can be used as
a translation tool for words and phrases.

Registration
School sites will assist parents with registration if needed.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 22

Page 143 of 434

DRAFT



Curriculum & Instruction

Time 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. Contact Time with Teacher

Curriculum Florida Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

Virtual independent practice with a focus on academic vocabulary, rigorous
text, technical writing, and testing strategies

Materials ACT preparation materials

Assessment Screening: Most recent ELA FSA data, ACT data, or SAT data
Progress Monitoring: Formative assessments and teacher-developed
records
Outcome Measure: ELA FSA Retake data, ACT data, or SAT data

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration
information. The teacher will be provided with each student’s most recent FSA ELA, ACT and/or SAT
scores and student grades from the 2020-21 school year.

Closing Out Summer School Records
The summer school teacher will report the end of course grades for summer school coursework,
which will be reflected in the student’s record.

ESOL Budget and Finance

11th - 12th Grade ESOL Summer Reading - Fund 443 Grant 4813 Program 801 - June and July 2022

● 443-5100128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5100158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

11th- 12th Grade ESOL Summer Language Program Forms

ESOL Informational Flyer (English)
ESOL Informational Flyer (Espanol)
ESOL Informational Flyer (Haitian Creole)

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 23

Page 144 of 434

DRAFT



ESE Extended School Year

District Contact

Renee’ Kemp 904-336-6877 jacqueline.kemp@myoneclay.net

Locations* Feeders Meals Cost

McRae Elementary
Lake Asbury Jr. High
Bannerman Learning

Center

Entire school
district

Meals not provided Free

ESE Extended School Year Calendar*

Teachers
& Nurses

● Planning Day, 6/9//2022, 7:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m., report to assigned school
● Lake Asbury Jr. High & Bannerman Learning Center Operating Dates,

6/13/2022 - 7/13/2022 Monday/Wednesday 7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (Does Not
Include Lunch)

● McRae Elementary School Operating Dates, 6/14/2022 - 7/14/2022
Tuesday/Thursday 7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (Does Not Include Lunch)

● Direct Instruction provided through whole class, small group, independent
practice as well as the use of collaborative online tools in real time

Students ● Lake Asbury Jr. High & Bannerman Learning Center Operating Dates,
6/13/2022 - 7/13/2022 Monday/Wednesday 7:50 a.m. - 11:50 p.m. (includes a
15 minute break)

● McRae Elementary School Operating Dates, 6/14/2022 - 7/14/2022
Tuesday/Thursday 7:50 a.m. - 11:50 p.m. (includes a 15 minute break)

● Direct Instruction provided through whole class, small group, independent
practice as well as the use of collaborative online tools in real time

Assistants ● Lake Asbury Jr. High & Bannerman Learning Center Operating Dates,
6/13/2022 - 7/13/2022 Monday/Wednesday 7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (Does Not
Include Lunch)

● McRae Elementary School Operating Dates, 6/14/2022 - 7/14/2022
Tuesday/Thursday 7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (Does Not Include Lunch)

Important
Dates

● No School Monday, July 4, 2022 - Thursday, July 7, 2022

*The ESY calendar is a general framework for services; The IEP team makes the decision regarding
ESY services necessary for the provision of FAPE.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 24

Page 145 of 434

DRAFT



Student Registration

Extended school year services are available to provide a Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE)
for students with disabilities and must be considered by the IEP team as part of the provision of a free
appropriate public education. The IEP team determines the need for ESY services and location of
those services. It is important that IEP teams consider a variety of criteria or factors when determining
whether ESY services are necessary in order to ensure the provision of FAPE.  The necessity for
ESY services and/or the duration of those services cannot be limited based on the type or the degree
of disability.  ESY services must be addressed at least annually for each student with a disability. ESY
is NOT any of the following: summer school, child care, respite care, intended to maximize
educational opportunity or potential growth, a longer school day, one-size-fits-all, or provided based
on specific areas of disability, level of service, or type of classroom placement.

Criteria that the IEP team can use to determine whether a student requires ESY services may include
but not be limited to:

● Regression/Recoupment - Will the student regress substantially in a critical life skill related to
his or her IEP goals if ESY services are not provided?

● Critical Point of Instruction - Is the student at a crucial stage in mastering a critical life skill,
when a lapse in services would substantially harm the child’s chances of learning that skill?

● Nature/Severity of Disability - Is the nature or severity of the student’s disability such that the
student will not receive a reasonable level of benefit from his or her educational program
during the regular school year if ESY services are not provided?

● Special Circumstances (e.g., transition from school to work) - Are there extenuating
circumstances that make it unlikely that the student will receive FAPE without ESY services?

If a student is determined to need ESY, the IEP team must also consider the type of services needed.
Some options for services may include direct instruction; take-home instructional materials; itinerant
teacher services, tutorials; services contracted through community or outside agencies; consultation.

Notification
The IEP team, including the parent, determines the need for extended school year services.  Once it
is determined that a student requires extended school year services, the details of the program will be
provided to the parent via the ESE teacher. The ESY Calendar and Framework for services can be
located on page three of this manual.

Registration
Registration will be completed in collaboration with IEP teams at school sites.

Location
Students who require services through ESY programs will be served virtually based on their needs.
Please refer to the ESY Virtual summer calendar for a general framework of services.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 25

Page 146 of 434

DRAFT



Student Policies

Attendance
Students are encouraged to attend each day of the program.
Student Code of Conduct
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings.

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
The ESY teacher will be notified of student needs based on each student’s IEP.

Closing Out Summer School Records
The ESY Teacher will update the student’s goals and objectives on the IEP, and complete the
Summary of Progress document, which can be found in the ESY Task Instructions.

ESE Budget and Finance

ESE Summer School/Extended School Year – Fund 443 Function 5200 Grant 4813 Program 801 -
June and July 2022

● ESE Summer Teachers 443-5200128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2

● ESE Summer PTs, OTs 443-5200138-cost center-0000-4813-801-2

● ESE Summer Assistants 443-5200158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2

● ESE Summer BRT/BLC 443-5200128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2

● ESE Summer Nurses 443-6100168-cost center-0000-4813-801-2

ESE Extended School Year Calendar

Extended School Year (ESY) Calendar

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 26

Page 147 of 434

DRAFT



Instructional and Support Application & Hiring

Instructional

The following are the instructional qualifications for summer school:

ARTICLE XIV
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS

C.  All instructional employment in summer school shall be filled according to the following criteria:

1.       All teachers who apply shall apply for summer school classroom positions which are
open at centers affecting their school.  Requests to teach summer school shall be
presented to the district Human Resources Division.

2.        a. Only teachers under contract in the county for the year preceding or for the next
year will be considered for summer school employment.

b. No teacher receiving an unsatisfactory evaluation during the regular school year
will be eligible for summer school employment.

3. Assignments to such positions in each summer school center shall be made according
to the following ranked criteria:

a. Proper certification and qualifications are held by the employee.
b. Employee has taught one (1) year in the subject applied for within the past three

(3) years or is assigned to teach the subject for the next school year.
c. Uninterrupted seniority in the district.

4. During the first three days of summer school, the following ranked criteria shall be used
should there be a need to reduce the number of teachers in a specific subject area
within the school, or, for exceptional education teachers on a district-wide basis:

a. Teachers who do not hold proper certification or qualifications.
b. Teachers who have not taught one (1) year in the subject within the past three (3)

years or is not assigned to teach the subject for the next school year.
c. Teachers with least uninterrupted district seniority.

5. Summer school teachers shall not be required to teach less than two (2) hours per day.

Notes:

● Positions are based on open enrollment.  Once positions are determined, the positions will be
subject to minimum required enrollment.

● If a teacher needs to be absent, Principals should work with their faculty and attempt to find a
substitute.  The absent teacher will not receive pay for the hours missed and the teacher who
took their place can be paid.

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 27

Page 148 of 434

DRAFT



● If a program has additional requirements, these requirements will be listed with the position
posting.

Additional Requirements for VPK:

● Under course code number 5100590 VPK Summer Program, VPK summer school
instructional personnel must hold a valid Florida certificate with a bachelor degree or higher
in one of the following: Early Childhood Education, Pre-Kindergarten or Primary Education,
Preschool Education, Family and Consumer Science Education, Elementary Education.

● It is required that instructional personnel receive the following training: Implementing the
Florida Standards in Preschool Classrooms: 3 Years Old to Kindergarten (VFSP), 15 Hours
of Emergent Literacy training in alignment with House Bill (HB) 419 and HB 7011, and How
to Administer the Florida VPK Assessment (HTVA). The training must be completed prior
to the determined summer school VPK placements: Training and Registry Login.

● Job sharing will be allowed for the Summer Pre-Kindergarten Program as long as both
teachers and the administrator agree to work a Summer A (June 1, 2022 – June 30, 2022)
and Summer B (July 1, 2022 – July 29, 2022) prior to the first day of the program.

Additional Requirements for Summer Reading Camp

Summer Reading Camp teachers must, employee’s familiarity with the specific group of students,
ESE experience and training, and all else being equal, seniority.  The primary consideration shall be
the goal of providing optimal staffing for students within the summer school center.

● Be either Reading Endorsed or Reading Certified and rated highly effective.

Support

Placement of support personnel in summer school positions when allocated shall be made in the best
interest of the student in accordance with the IEP, current job title, consideration of the mix of the
exceptionalities in the summer school setting

Table of Contents 2022 Summer Programs Manual 28

Page 149 of 434

DRAFT



Rising K and K-5th Summer Programs 2022 Calendar

Clay County District Schools VPK, Rising K-5th Grade                              
Summer Reading Programs & Camps 2022

Location Elementary 
Sites

Training        
Teacher-Assistants

First Day        
Teachers-Assistants 

First Day 
Students 

Last Day   
Students-Staff

 Hours 
Students

Hours Teachers-
Assistants Important Dates 

Voluntary Pre-K (VPK) 
Summer Program 
 (41 Student Days)

Doctors Inlet (DIS)

Wednesday
6/1/2022

Onsite Pre Planning/Key Pickup 
Training (Curriculum & Materials) 

8:00 a.m -  3:00 p.m.

Thursday
6/2/2022

Friday
7/29/2022

Monday - Friday 
8:00 a.m. - 3:30 p.m.

Monday - Friday 
5-Day Week 

7:30 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.

Monday, July 4, 2022 
Teacher-Student 

Holiday

Rising K-2nd Grade 
Summer Reading Camp

 (22 Student Days)

Charles E. Bennett (CEB)
Doctors Inlet (DIS) 
Grove Park (GPE) 

McRae (MRE) 
Oakleaf Village (OVE) 

Wilkinson (WES)

Wednesday
 6/8/2022  

Curriculum Training
TTC Main Room  

8:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m.

Monday
 6/13/2022 

Assigned School Site: Pre 
Planning & Key Pickup                  

9:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

Tuesday 
6/14/2022

Thursday
 7/21/2022 Monday - Thursday 

8:00 a.m - 1:00 p.m.

Monday – Thursday 
4-Day Week

7:30 a.m - 1:30 p.m.
**Thursday, 7/21/2022: Post 

Planning & Key Turn-in                  
1:30 p.m. - 3:30 p.m.

Monday, July 4, 2022 
Teacher-Student 

Holiday

 3rd-5th Grade 
Summer Reading Camp

 (22 Student Days)

 
Charles E. Bennett (CEB)       

Doctors Inlet (DIS)        
Grove Park (GPE)

McRae (MRE)                      
Oakleaf Village (OVE)      

Wilkinson (WES)

Thursday
 6/9/2022  

 Curriculum Training
TTC Main Room  

8:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m.

Monday
 6/13/2022 

Assigned School Site: Pre 
Planning & Key Pickup                  

9:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 
Tuesday 
6/14/2022

Thursday
 7/21/2022 Monday - Thursday 

8:00 a.m - 1:00 p.m.

Monday – Thursday 
4-Day Week

7:30 a.m - 1:30 p.m.
**Thursday, 7/21/2022: Post 

Planning & Key Turn-in                  
1:30 p.m. - 3:30 p.m.

Monday, July 4, 2022 
Teacher-Student 

Holiday

Eligibility for Summer Reading Camp (SRC) is determined by state and district assessment data. Reading Camp teachers must be either Reading Endorsed or Reading Certified s.1011.62(8)(a)(5). 3rd grade SRC 
teachers must also be highly effective s.1008.25(7). Inclusion teachers must also be ESE Certified.

Refer to separate calendar for information regarding Extended School Year Services (ESY) & 6th Grade, Jr. High, & High School Summer Programs
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           SCHOOL BOARD APPROVED: March , 2022

Page 150 of 434

DRAFT



Clay County District Schools
6th Grade, Jr. High, & High School 

Summer Programs 
2022

Location First Day Teachers
First Day 

School Counselor (504 
Support))

First Day 
Students & 
Assistants

Last Day 
Teachers 

Last Day 
Students & 
Assistants 

Last Day
School Counelor 

(504 Support)
Student Hours Teachers &

Assistants Hours School Counselor  
(504 Support)

Important Dates 

6th Grade,  Jr. 
HIgh & High 

School Credit 
Recovery 
Standard 
diploma, 

including ESE 
students 
(16 Days)

Virtual
Monday - 
Thursday

Thursday
 6/9/2022 

Training/Planning 
virtually from 

8:30 a.m. - 11:30 a.m.

Thursday, 6/9/2022 
Identify 504 students 

10:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

All subjects 
6/13/2022

Tuesday 
7/12/2022

8 a.m. - 11 a.m
 post planning

Monday
 7/11/2022

Thursday
 7/14/2022

Monday 
2:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m.

Tuesday
 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.

Wednesday
2:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m.

Thursday 
8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.

Monday 
2:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m.

Tuesday
 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.

Wednesday
 2:00 p.m. - 7:00 pm

Thursday
 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.

6/13/2022 - 7/7/2022
 10:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.
7/11/2022 - 7/14/2022 
 9:00 a.m. -3:00 p.m. 
 (extended time/days)

No school on 7/4 

Summer EOC's: 
July 11 - 22. 

Information on 
Individual 

EOC dates will be 
distributed by the 
students home 

school.  

Algebra 1 
Credit Recovery 

ESE Only 
(16 Days)

KHH
OHS 
MHS

Transportation 
will be provided 
for all students

Monday
6/13/2022 

Report to assigned school 
for

 virtual Training
8:00 a.m. - 9:00 a.m. 
Planning at assigned 

school
 9:00 a.m.-11:00 a.m.

N/A Tuesday
6/14/2022

Tuesday 
7/12/2022

Tuesday 
7/12/2022 N/A Monday - Thursday 

8:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.

Monday - Thursday 
 7:45 a.m. - 11:45 a.m.

No school on 7/4 

Summer EOC's: 
July 11 - 22. 

Information on 
Individual 

EOC dates will be 
distributed by the 
students home 

school.  

Algebra I 
Boot Camp 
Standard 
diploma, 

including ESE 
students
 (4 Days)

Students will 
report to their 
zoned high 

school. 

Junior high TBD.

Tuesday 
7/12/2022

Report to assigned school 
for planning 

12:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m.

N/A Wednesday 
7/13/2022

Tuesday 
7/19/2022

Tuesday 
7/19/2022 N/A Wednesday - Tuesday 

8:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

Tuesday - Tuesday 
7:45 a.m. - 11:45 a.m.

No school on 7/4 

Summer EOC's: 
July 11 - 22. 

Information on 
Individual 

EOC dates will be 
distributed by the 
students home 

school.  

11th-12th 
ESOL Summer 

Language 
Program ELLs, 

new arrivals and 
non-English 

speakers 
(8 days)

Virtual 
Monday - 
Thursday

Thursday 
6/9/2022 

Planning Virtually 
8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

N/A Monday 
6/13/2022

Thursday 
6/23/2021

Thursday 
6/23/2021 N/A

Monday - Thursday 
8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 

4 -Day Week

Monday – Thursday 
7:45 a.m.  -  12:15 p.m. 

4-Day Week 

No school on 7/4 

Summer EOC's: 
July 11 - 22. 

Information on 
Individual 

EOC dates will be 
distributed by the 
students home 

school.  

Bannerman 
Learning Center 

Virtual
Monday 

& 
Tuesday

Thursday
6/9/2022

Planning Virtually
8:30 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. N/A Monday 

6/13/2022
Tuesday

July 26, 2022
Tuesday

July 26, 2022 N/A Monday
1:30 p.m. - 5:00 p.m

Tuesday
7:30 a.m. -12:00 p.m.

No school on 7/4 
& 7/5

Summer EOC's: 
July 11 - 22. 

Information on 
Individual 

EOC dates will be 
distributed by the 
students home 

school.  

Refer to separate calendar for information regarding Extended School Year Services (ESY) & Elementary Summer School Programs 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    SCHOOL BOARD APPROVED: March , 2022

Page 151 of 434

DRAFT



Clay County District Schools
Exceptional Student Education

 Extended School Year 
(ESY) 2022

Location
 (*ESY Sites)

First Day 
Teachers & Nurses 

First Day 
Students & 
Assistants

Last Day 
Teachers 

Last Day 
Students & 
Assistants 

Student Hours Teachers &
Assistants Hours

Important Dates
(Teacher/Student 

Holiday)

Extended School 
Year (ESY) 

Lake Asbury Jr. 
High 

Lake Asbury Jr. 
High

Thursday
6/09/2022

7:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m. 
Monday

6/13/2022
Wednesday

7/13/2022
Wednesday

7/13/2022

Monday/Wednesday
7:50 a.m. - 11:50 a.m.

 (includes a 
15 minute break)

Monday/Wednesday
7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

Monday - Thursday 
July 4 -7, 2022

Extended School 
Year (ESY) 

McRae Elementary 
McRae Elementary 

Thursday
06/09/2022

7:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m. 
Tuesday

6/14/ 2022
Thursday
7/14/2022

Thursday
7/14/2022

Tuesday/Thursday
7:50 a.m. - 11:50 a.m.

 (includes a 
15 minute break)

Tuesday/Thursday
7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

Monday - Thursday 
July 4 -7, 2022

Extended School 
Year (ESY) 
Bannerman 

Learning Center

Bannerman 
Learning Center

Thursday
6/09/2022

7:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m. 
Monday

6/13/2022
Wednesday

7/13/2022
Wednesday

7/13/2022

Monday/Wednesday
7:50 a.m. - 11:50 a.m.

 (includes a 
15 minute break)

Monday/Wednesday
7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

Monday - Thursday 
July 4 -7, 2022

THE ESY CALENDAR IS A GENERAL FRAMEWORK FOR SERVICES; THE IEP TEAM MAKES THE DECISION REGARDING ESY SERVICES NECESSARY FOR THE PROVISION OF FAPE.

STUDENTS ARE ASSIGNED TO AN ESY SITE BASED ON THEIR NEEDS (LAJ, BLC, MRE).

                                                                                                                                                                                                                            SCHOOL BOARD APPROVED: January 6, 2022

Page 152 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Approve Agreement for Establishment of Navy Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps Unit at Oakleaf High School

Description
Oakleaf High School has operated a Navy National Defense Cadet Corps (NNDCC) unit at the High school for several years.
This program is similar to the Navy Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps, and is generally a “starter” program that is funded
solely by the School District and is utilized to promote interest in, and as a precursor to, a full-fledged NJROTC program. The
school applied for a full-fledged NJROTC unit based upon the high interest created by the NNDCC unit. The Navy has granted
the application. An NJROTC unit is identical to the NNDCC unit with the exception that the Navy will offer significant funding
which includes, but Is not limited to, partial reimbursement for two instructor salaries, uniform support and other support, all of
which is detailed in the attached proposed Agreement. The Agreement is between the School Board and the Department of the
Navy and remains in effect, without time limit, until it is terminated by either or both parties as provided for in the Agreement.

Gap Analysis
High interest in the NNDCC program offered by the high school has led to the Navy’s interest in granting the District application
for an NJROTC program. The addition of a full-fledged NJROTC program at Oakleaf High School is financially advantageous to
the School District and also enhances the existing program at the High School.

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will result in replacement of the NNDCC program at Oakleaf High School with a Navy supported
NJROTC program.

Strategic Plan Goal
Addition of this provides for expansion of the training capacity at the High school in the area of Military Science and education.

Recommendation
Approve the Agreement for Establishment of Navy Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps Unit at Oakleaf High School.

Contact
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12, treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

NJROTC_OHS Agreement.pdf

Page 153 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/njrotc_ohs-agreement.pdf


Page 154 of 434

DRAFT



Page 155 of 434

DRAFT



Page 156 of 434

DRAFT



Page 157 of 434

DRAFT



Page 158 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - Approve St. Johns Classical Academy Charter Renewal

Description
St Johns Classical Academy is a Charter School located in Fleming Island, Florida serving students in Kindergarten through 6th
grade. St Johns Classical Academy is in the 5th year of its charter and the school has submitted a request for renewal. Due to its
status as an A school for two consecutive years, St Johns Classical Academy has been designated as a high-performing charter
school per the Florida Department of Education. Per Florida Statute 1002.331 the school is authorized to request a 15-year
charter. Additionally, the school has requested to increase its student enrollment to a maximum of 1000 students.

Gap Analysis
St Johns Classical Academy is an A-rated Charter School serving students in Clay County.

Previous Outcomes
St Johns Classical Academy is in the last year of its 5 year charter and was previously approved by the school board in March of
2021.

Expected Outcomes
St Johns Classical Academy will continue to operate a successful charter school in Clay County, Florida.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3: Establish a respectful climate and culture that provides equity and access to all.
Strategy 3.1: Engage stakeholders to strengthen and build a collaborative and constructive environment that encourages high
expectations for all.

Recommendation
Approve the 15-year charter renewal request for St Johns Classical Academy.

Contact
Karen McMillan, Coordinator, School Choice; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

St Johns Classical Academy proposed renewal contract, 2022-2037.pdf

Page 159 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/st-johns-classical-academy-proposed-renewal-contract-2022-2037.pdf


 

 

Florida Standard Charter Renewal Contract 

 

 

 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

THIS CHARTER entered into as of the     day of    February, 2022 

by and between 

 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA, a body corporate operating and 

existing under the Laws of the State of Florida 

 

and 

 

ST. JOHNS CLASSICAL ACADEMY 

114 CANOVA ROAD 

FLEMING ISLAND, FL 32003   

 

a non-profit organization 

 

  

Page 160 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

Definitions 

 

Definitions:  The following terms shall have the following meanings herein unless the context 

clearly requires otherwise: 

 

Application shall mean the School’s application for a Charter (including amendments) as 

submitted to and approved by the Sponsor. 

 

Governing Board shall mean the governing board or body of the School. 

 

Charter shall mean this Charter entered into between the School and the Sponsor. 

 

County shall mean CLAY County, Florida. 

 

District shall mean the school district for the County as referenced in Art. IX, Section 4, 

Florida Constitution. 

 

FDOE shall mean the Florida Department of Education. 

 

High-Stakes Review shall mean an in-depth sponsor review of important charter school 

performance data utilizing the agreed upon goals and objectives referenced in this Charter. 

This review differs from routine annual reports in terms of depth and comprehensiveness 

of the data reviewed. 

 

School shall mean ST. JOHNS CLASSICAL ACADEMY (contracting party or legal entity 

and dba). 

 

Sponsor shall mean the school board of the District as referenced in Art. IX, Section 4, 

Florida Constitution. 

 

State shall mean the State of Florida. 

 

Superintendent shall mean the superintendent of schools for the District as referenced in 

Art. IX, Section 4, Florida Constitution. 

 

Section 1 

 

A. Application is Approved.  The Application is approved by the Sponsor. A copy of the 

Application is attached hereto as Appendix 1 and constitutes a part of this Charter. In the 

event of any conflict between the Application and any other provision of this Charter, the 

Charter provision shall control. 

 

B. Term of Charter. 

 

1. Effective Date. This Charter shall become effective on the date it is approved by 

the both parties. 

Page 161 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

 

2. Term.  The term of this Charter shall be fifteen (15) years commencing on 

 July 1, 2022 and ending on June 30, 2037_ unless terminated sooner as provided 

herein, or extended pursuant to Section 1.B.2., herein. The term shall be 

automatically extended on a month-to-month basis until the Charter has been 

renewed, non-renewed, or terminated by the Sponsor. If the parties cannot reach 

agreement on the terms of a new contract, either party may request mediation from 

the FDOE, pursuant to section 1002.33(7)(b), Florida Statutes.  If the 

Commissioner of Education determines that the dispute cannot be settled through 

mediation, the dispute may be appealed to an administrative law judge appointed 

by the Division of Administrative Hearings. The administrative law judge has final 

order authority to rule on the dispute, including whether proposed provisions of the 

Charter violate the intended flexibility granted charter schools by statute. 

 

 

3. Charter Modification.  This Charter may be modified during its initial term or any 

renewal term only upon approval of both parties.  No such modification shall be 

enforceable unless it is in writing and approved by both the Governing Board and 

the Sponsor.  If the modification involves changes to the grade levels, except as 

provided by law for high-performing charter schools, the School must provide 

information acceptable to the Sponsor relating to operational capacity, curriculum, 

budget, facilities, and staff. 

 

4. Charter Renewal.  This Charter may be renewed as provided for in section 1002.33, 

or 1002.331, Florida Statutes. No later than September 15th in the final academic 

year of this charter, a Sponsor shall provide notice to the School regarding the 

process and timeline for completing the programmatic review required under s. 

1002.33(7)(c)1., Florida Statutes. Upon completion of the programmatic review, 

but no later than 90 days prior to the end of the charter term, the Sponsor shall 

notify the governing board of the Charter School in writing of the proposed action 

to renew, terminate, or non-renew the charter, pursuant to s. 1002.33(8)(a), Florida 

Statutes. The Sponsor may not require the School to waive the provisions of s. 

1002.331, Florida Statutes, or require a student enrollment cap that prohibits a 

high-performing charter school from increasing enrollment in accordance with s. 

1002.331(2), Florida Statutes, as a condition of approval or renewal of the Charter.  

 

5. Periodic Review and Evaluation.  The Sponsor shall annually evaluate the Charter 

School on its performance and progress toward meeting the standards and targets 

included in this Charter, including academic achievement goals.  If the term of this 

Charter exceeds five years, the Sponsor shall conduct a High-Stakes Review at 

least every five years and shall present the findings of the review to the Governing 

Board of the School. 

 

C. Education Program and Curriculum 

 

1. Any material change to the education program or curriculum as described in the 

Page 162 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

approved Application or Charter requires Sponsor approval. 

 

2. The School agrees to implement its educational and related programs as specified 

in the Application unless otherwise modified by this Charter. 

 

3. The School shall make reading a primary focus of the curriculum and provide 

sufficient resources to identify and provide specialized instruction for students 

who are reading below grade level. The reading curriculum and instructional 

strategies shall be consistent with Florida Standards and grounded in 

scientifically-based reading research. 

 

4. The School shall adopt the District’s plan for English Language Learners, or 

implement an alternate District approved plan.  If applicable, the School's plan for 

English Language Learners is attached hereto as Appendix 3. The plan must 

include sufficient information and detail to allow the Sponsor to determine legal 

sufficiency. 

 

5. The School will establish the current incoming baseline standard of student 

academic achievement, the outcomes to be achieved, and the method of 

measurement that will be used, as described in the approved Application or 

otherwise described in this Charter. 

 

D. Renewal, Non-Renewal, or Termination 

 

1. Non-Renewal/Termination of this Charter. The Sponsor shall make student 

academic achievement for all students the most important factor when determining 

whether to renew or terminate this Charter. The Sponsor may choose not to renew 

or terminate this Charter if it finds that any of the following grounds below exist 

by clear and convincing evidence, as set forth in section 1002.33(8), Florida 

Statutes. 

 

i. Failure to participate in Florida’s education accountability system 

created in s. 1008.31, as required in this section, or failure to meet the 

requirements for student performance established pursuant to Section 

2A of the Charter. 

 

ii. Failure to meet generally accepted standards of fiscal management. 

 

iii. Material violation of law. 

 

iv. Other good cause shown, which may include, but is not limited to, 

any of the following: 

 

a. Failure to cure a material breach of any term or condition of 

this Charter after written notice of non-compliance; 

 

Page 163 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

b. Failure to implement a reading curriculum that is consistent with 

effective reading strategies grounded in scientifically based 

reading research if not timely cured after written notice; 

 

c. Filing for voluntary bankruptcy, adjudication of bankruptcy or 

of insolvency, or other state of financial impairment by the 

School such that the School can no longer operate or is no longer 

financially viable; 

 

d. Failure by the School to provide the District with access to 

records as required by law or this Charter; 

 

e. Failure of the School to maintain minimum insurance 

coverage as described in this Charter if not timely cured after 

written notice; 

 

f. Violation by the School of any court order pertaining to the 

operation of the School; 

 

g. A criminal conviction upon matters involving the School 

against either the Governing Board, its members (collectively or 

individually), or the management company where the 

Governing Board knew or should have known of the conduct 

underlying the conviction and failed to take corrective action; 

 

h. Failure by the School to timely submit to the District a financial 

corrective action plan or financial recovery plan and required 

supporting documents following a notification from the District, 

Auditor General, or FDOE, that such a plan is required; 

 

i. Failure by the School to implement any financial corrective 

action plan or financial recovery plan approved by the Florida 

Commissioner of Education pursuant to section 218.503, Florida 

Statutes; 

 

j. Failure to provide periodic progress reports as required by the 

financial recovery plan if not timely cured after written notice; 

 

k. Perpetration of a material fraud upon the District or material 

intentional misrepresentation in the Application; 

 

l. Failure to comply with background screening and other 

requirements set forth in section 1002.33, Florida Statutes; 

 

m. Failure by the School to comply with all applicable laws, 

ordinances and codes of federal, state and local governance 

Page 164 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

including, without limitation, the Individuals with Disabilities 

Education Act (IDEA) and applicable laws relating to English 

Language Learners (ELL). 

 

n. Failure to make sufficient progress in attaining the student 

achievement objectives of the  Charter established pursuant to 

Section 2.A. and the School’s School Improvement Plan, if 

applicable, and a showing that it is not likely that such 

objectives can be achieved before the end of the Charter term; 

 

o. Willfully or recklessly failing to manage public funds in 

accordance with the law; 

 

p. Any action by the School that is detrimental to the health, 

safety, or welfare of its students that is not timely cured after 

written notice; 

 

q. Failure to maintain the minimum number of three 

Governing Board members for more than 30 days; 

 

r. Failure to obtain and maintain all necessary licenses, permits, 

zoning, use approval, facility certifications, and any other 

approval required by the local government or any other 

governmental authorities having jurisdiction at any time during 

the term of this Charter. 

 

2. The Sponsor shall notify the Governing Board in writing at least ninety days prior to 

renewing, non-renewing, or terminating this Charter, following the procedures set forth 

in section 1002.33(8), Florida Statutes. 

 

i. If the Sponsor issues a notice of non-renewal or termination, the notice 

shall state in reasonable detail the grounds for the proposed action and 

stipulate that the Governing Board may, within 14 calendar days of 

receipt of the notice, request a hearing. 

ii. A request for a hearing must be authorized by a vote of the 

Governing Board and be submitted pursuant to the Notice 

provisions of this Charter. 

 

3. The Sponsor may immediately terminate this charter pursuant to section 

1002.33(8)(c), Florida Statutes. 

 

i. Upon receipt of notice of immediate termination from the Sponsor, 

the School shall immediately provide the Sponsor access to the School’s 

facilities along with security system access codes and access codes for all 

School owned or leased computers, software, networking, switching and 

all other technical systems in the School’s facilities or remotely located 

Page 165 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

areas serving the School, and shall immediately make accessible all 

educational and administrative records of the School. Moreover, within 

two (2) business days, the School shall turn over to the Sponsor copies of 

all records and information regarding the accounts of all of the public 

funds held by the School.  The Sponsor shall assume operation of the 

school throughout the pendency of the hearing as provided for in s. 

1002.33(8)(d), Florida Statutes, unless the continued operation of the 

School would materially threaten the health, safety or welfare of the 

students.  Failure by the Sponsor to assume and continue operation of the 

School shall result in the awarding of reasonable costs and attorney’s fees 

to the School if the School prevails on appeal.  If the School prevails in an 

appeal through a final adjudication by an administrative law judge or by a 

final adjudication and mandate by the appellate court if an appeal to the 

appellate court is filed, the Sponsor shall, immediately, return to School 

all keys, security codes, all educational and administrative records of the 

School, and the School’s facility.  In that case, the School’s Governing 

Board shall resume operation and oversight of the School. 

 

ii. The School's instructional and operational employees may continue 

working in the School during the time that the Sponsor operates the School, 

at the Sponsor's option, but will not be considered employees of the 

Sponsor.  Any existing employment contracts that any School personnel 

may have with the School may not be assumed or transferred to the Sponsor 

or any entity created by the Sponsor during the assumption of operations 

of the School unless the Sponsor or its entity, and the School, agree 

otherwise.  The Sponsor reserves the right to take any appropriate personnel 

action regarding the School's employees. 

 

4. If the School elects to terminate or non-renew the Charter, it shall provide 

reasonable prior notice of the election to the Sponsor indicating the final date of 

operation as voted by the Governing Board at a publicly noticed meeting.  A 

board resolution signed by the School's Governing Board chair and secretary, 

indicating support of this action, shall accompany the written notification 

provided to the Sponsor. The School agrees that such notification shall be 

considered a voluntary termination by the Governing Board and a waiver of its 

right to a hearing or appeal. 

 

5. Upon notice of termination or non-renewal the School shall not remove any 

public property from the premises without written Sponsor approval. 

 

E. Post Termination Provisions 

 

1. If this Charter is not renewed or is terminated, the School shall be responsible for 

all the debts of the School. The District shall not assume the debt from any contract 

for services including lease or rental agreements, made between the School and a 

third party, except for a debt previously detailed and agreed upon, in writing, by 

Page 166 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

both the Sponsor and the Governing Board and that may not reasonably be assumed 

to have been satisfied by the Sponsor. 

 

2. In the event of termination or non-renewal of this Charter, any and all leases 

existing between the District and the School shall be automatically cancelled, 

unless the lease provides otherwise.  In no event shall the District be responsible 

under any assignment of a lease for any debts or obligations of the School 

incurred prior to such assignment. 

 

3. In the event of termination or non-renewal, any students enrolled at the School may 

be enrolled at their home District school, or any other school, consistent with the 

District’s student transfer procedures including transfer of all student records to the 

receiving school. All assets of the School purchased with public funds, including 

supplies, furniture and equipment, will revert to full ownership of the Sponsor 

(subject to any lawful liens or encumbrances) or as otherwise provided by law. Any 

unencumbered public funds from the School, property and improvements of the 

Sponsor, furnishings, and equipment purchased with public funds, or financial or 

other records pertaining to the School, in the possession of any person, entity, or 

holding company, other than the School, shall be held in trust upon the Sponsor's 

request, until any appeal is resolved. If the School’s accounting records fail to 

clearly establish whether a particular asset was purchased with public funds, then 

it shall be presumed public funds were utilized and ownership of the asset shall 

automatically revert to the Sponsor. 

 

4. Final Audit:  Pursuant to section 1002.33, Florida Statutes, upon notice of non- 

renewal, closure, or termination, an independent audit shall be completed within 

30 days to account for all public funds and assets.  During the fiscal year in which 

the termination or non-renewal occurs, the Sponsor may withhold from the 

School's FEFP funds, without penalty or interest, an amount necessary to cover the 

costs for a final financial audit of the School.  The audit shall be conducted by an 

independent certified public accountant. 

 

F. General Statutory Requirements 

 

1. The School shall not discriminate in educational programs/activities or 

employment and shall provide equal opportunity for all as required by Federal, 

State and local law, rule, regulation and court order. 

 

2. Additionally, the School shall comply with those statutes that specifically apply to 

charter schools as set forth in section 1002.33 generally, subsection 1002.33(16), 

and other applicable State laws.  The School agrees that it will abide by all Federal 

and State laws, statutes, rules, and regulations applicable to charter schools and 

also abide by the terms and conditions of the Charter. 

 

Section 2: Academic Accountability 

 

Page 167 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

Student academic achievement for all students shall be the most important factor when 

considering whether to renew, non-renew, or terminate this charter. 

 

A. Annual Objectives 

 

1. By September 15
 
of each year the Sponsor shall provide the School with academic 

student performance data on state required assessments for each student attending the 

School that was enrolled the prior year in another public school, pursuant to s. 

1002.33(7)(a)3., Florida Statutes. The Sponsor may fulfill this requirement by 

providing the School access to the data. 

 

2. By September 15
 
of each year the Sponsor shall provide the School the rates of 

academic progress for the prior year for comparable student populations in the District. 

The data shall include proficiency and growth on state assessments for English 

Language Arts and Mathematics by grade grouping (grades 3-5, 6-8, 9-12)for the 

following student groups: 

i. Students scoring a level 1 on prior year assessment 

ii. Students scoring a level 2 on prior year assessment 

iii. Students scoring a level 3 or higher on prior year assessments 

iv. Students with disabilities 

v. English Language Learners 

 

3. By October 15
 
of the first year of this Charter, the School shall provide its proposed 

academic achievement goals for the remaining years of the Charter to the Sponsor. The 

academic achievement goals shall include, at a minimum, growth and proficiency on 

state assessments, and may include performance on additional assessments included in 

the approved Application. If the School will not serve students in grades that 

participate in the statewide assessments the academic achievement goals shall be based 

on the assessments included in the approved application, and at least one assessment 

administered in traditional public schools in the District. 

 

i. The Sponsor shall review the proposed academic achievement goals within 30 

days of receipt. If the Sponsor does not accept the proposed academic 

achievement goals it shall provide the School a written explanation. If the 

School and Sponsor cannot agree on academic achievement goals either party 

may request mediation pursuant to section 1002.33(6), Florida Statutes. If the 

Sponsor does not provide written notification within 30 days of receipt, the 

goals shall be deemed accepted by the Sponsor. 

 

4. By October 15
 
of the second year of the School’s operation, the School shall 

provide its proposed academic achievement goals for the remaining years of the 

Charter, up to a maximum of four years or the end of the current Charter term, 

whichever occurs first, using the same parameters and testing set forth in Section 

2.A.3, above. Schools that have contracts in excess of five years shall resubmit 

proposed academic achievement goals every four years pursuant to the process 

described in this paragraph. 

Page 168 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

 

i. The Sponsor shall review the proposed academic achievement goals within 

30 days of receipt. If the Sponsor does not accept the academic achievement 

goals it shall provide the School a written explanation. If the Sponsor does not 

respond within 30 days of receipt the academic achievement goals are deemed 

accepted. If the School and Sponsor cannot agree on academic achievement 

goals either party may request mediation pursuant to section 1002.33(6), 

Florida Statutes. The goals may be adjusted at any time upon mutual written 

consent of both parties. 

 

5. Annually, the School shall report its performance against the academic goals. If the 

School falls short of the academic achievement goals set forth under the provisions 

of this Charter the Sponsor shall report such shortcomings to the School’s Governing 

Board and FDOE. 

 

6. The School and Sponsor may agree to adjust the goals through the same 

process set forth in Section 2.A., above. 

 

7. Methods of Measurement:  The methods used to identify the educational strengths and 

needs of students are set forth in the approved Application. 

 

8. School Improvement Plans: The School shall develop and implement a School 

Improvement Plan as required by section 1002.33(9)(n), Florida Statutes and 

applicable State Board of Education Rules or applicable federal law. If the School 

is not required to submit a school improvement plan pursuant to Section 

1002.33(9), Florida Statutes, but is identified by the Department (under the Every 

Student Succeeds Act) to be included in the list of comprehensive support and 

improvement (CS&I) schools or targeted support and improvement (TS&I) 

schools, it must develop and implement a school improvement plan approved by 

the Governing Board. 

 

B. Assessments 

 

1. State required assessments: All students at the School will participate in all State 

assessment programs and assessments required by law. The School shall facilitate 

required alternate assessments and comply with state reporting procedures. 

 

2. Additional Assessments: Students may participate in any or all District assessment 

programs in which the District students in comparable grades or schools 

participate and shall participate in any other assessments as described in the 

Application. The School shall be responsible for the costs of District assessments 

that are not required by law or this Charter, except those developed with federal 

funds or those developed using Florida’s Item Bank and Test Platform 

 

3. If an IEP, 504 Plan or an EP for a student indicates accommodations or an 

alternate assessment for participation in a State assessment, or District 

Page 169 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

assessment, as applicable, the School will facilitate the accommodations or 

alternate assessment and comply with State reporting procedures. 

 

4. All School personnel involved with any aspect of the testing process must abide 

by State policies, procedures, and standards regarding test administration, test 

security, test audits, and reporting of test results The Sponsor shall invite the 

School staff to District offered training related to State assessment administration 

and, as applicable, District Assessment administration, at no cost to the School. 

The Sponsor shall provide to the applicable School staff all services or support 

activities that are routinely provided to the Sponsor's staff regarding 

implementation of District and State-required assessment activities. The School 

shall designate a testing coordinator and shall be responsible for proper test 

administration. The School shall permit the Sponsor to monitor or proctor all 

aspects of the School's test administration, if the Sponsor deems it necessary. 

 

5. The District shall provide the School with reports on District and State 

assessments in the same manner and at the same time as for all public schools in 

the District. 

 

6. The School shall, at its expense, provide adequate technological infrastructure to 

support all required online test administration. 

 

C. Student Promotion and Graduation: The School's student promotion policy shall be 

consistent with the provisions of the Application and applicable Florida law. The School 

will not adopt the Sponsor's student progression plan. 

 

The School's policy for determining that a student has satisfied the requirements for 

graduation shall be consistent with the provisions of the Application, and Florida law. 

 

Schools that serve students in grade 12 shall annually notify parents in writing the 

accreditation status of the school and the implications of non-accreditation, if applicable. 

The notification may be provided in the parent handbook. 

 

D. Data Access and Use Pursuant to Statute 

 

The School agrees to allow the District reasonable access to review its data sources in 

order to assist the District in making a valid determination about the degree to which 

student performance requirements, as stated in this Charter, have been met. 

 

Section 3: Students 

 

A. The School is authorized to serve students in grades Kindergarten through 12th grade with 

an enrollment of up to 1000 students.   

 

The School may provide enrollment preferences as allowed for in section 1002.33(10), 

Florida Statutes. Further, the School may limit the enrollment process to target specific 

Page 170 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

student populations as set forth in section 1002.33(10)(e), Florida Statutes, or as described 

in the approved Application. 

 

The School will accept all eligible students in accordance with federal and state anti- 

discrimination laws and in accordance with the Florida Educational Equity Act, section 

1000.05(2) (a), Florida Statutes. The School will not discriminate on the basis of race, 

gender, ethnicity, religion, national or ethnic origin or disability in the admission of 

students.  The School may not request prior to enrollment, through the application or 

otherwise, information regarding the student’s prior academic performance. Pursuant to 

section 1002.33(7), Florida Statutes, admission or dismissal must not be based on a 

student’s academic performance. 

 

The School shall be non-sectarian in its programs, admissions policies, employment 

practices and operations. The School will meet all applicable state and local health, 

safety, and civil rights requirements. The School will comply with all applicable 

provisions of the Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety Act, including 

the following: 

 

1. Section 1006.12, relating to safe-school officer; 

2. Section 1006.07(7), relating to threat assessment teams; 

3. Section 1006.07(9), relating to School Environmental Safety Incident 

Reporting; 

4. Section 1006.07(6)(c), relating to adopting an active assailant response 

plan; 

5. Section 943.082(4)(b), relating to the mobile suspicious activity 

reporting tool; 

6. Section 1012.584, relating to youth mental health awareness and 

assistance training. 

 

The School will not participate in its Sponsor’s plan for the mental health assistance 

allocation. If the School develops its own plan, it must submit that plan to its 

governing board for approval. After the plan is approved by the governing 

board, it must be provided to the School’s Sponsor. 

 

 

B. The School shall make reasonable efforts, in accordance with federal law, to achieve a 

racial or ethnic balance reflective of the community it serves or within the racial or 

ethnic range of other public schools in the District and shall not discriminate against 

students with disabilities who are served in Exceptional Student Education programs 

(ESE) and students who are served as English Language Learners (ELL). 

 

If the District is operating under a federal order or other resolution or settlement 

agreement, the School shall comply with those requirements applicable to charter schools 

that are not considered a local education agency (LEA). The School is not required to 

comply with federal requirements applicable to charter schools also considered to be an 

LEA. 

Page 171 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

 

C. Recruitment 

 

The School will recruit throughout all segments of the community. This may include direct 

mailings, public advertisement utilizing the local and community press and informational 

meetings at a variety of locations using both English and other languages where 

appropriate. 

 

D. Eligible Students 

 

1. Each year, the School agrees to enroll an eligible student by accepting a timely 

application through deadlines as determined by the Governing Board and publicly 

advertised. If the target goal of students is not met by the deadline, and the School 

wishes to extend, the School will give sufficient public notice and extend the 

application deadline for a set time as determined and publicized by the Governing 

Board. If, at the 10 day count, the registered enrollment as reflected in the Sponsor's 

data system is less than 75% of the School's total projected enrollment as provided 

for under the provisions of Section 3.F. of this Charter, the School shall, upon 

request by the Sponsor, submit a revised budget within 30 days taking into account 

the reduced enrollment.  Failure to provide the revised budget may constitute good 

cause for termination. 

 

2. If the number of applications exceeds the capacity of the program, class, grade 

level, or building, all applicants shall have an equal chance of being admitted 

through a random selection process. The School may give preference in admission 

to students or limit the enrollment as provided for in section 1002.33(10), Florida 

Statutes.  The School shall clearly indicate in its Policies and Procedures the lottery 

procedures and enrollment preferences the School will utilize. 

 

3. Enrollment is subject to compliance with the provisions of section 1003.22, Florida 

Statutes, concerning school entry health examinations and immunizations. 

 

4. If this Charter is not renewed or is terminated, a student who attended the School 

may be enrolled in another public school pursuant to Sponsor policies. 

 

5. A student may withdraw from the School at any time and enroll in another public 

school, as determined by District policy. The School shall work in conjunction 

with the parent(s) and the receiving school to ensure that such transfers minimize 

impact on the student's grades and academic achievement. 

 

6. Students at the School are eligible to participate in an interscholastic extracurricular 

activity at the public school to which the student would be otherwise assigned to 

attend pursuant to section 1006.15(3)(d) and 1002.20(18)(c), Florida Statutes. 

 

E. Class Size 

 

Page 172 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

The School shall be in compliance with Florida Constitutional Class Size Requirements, 

as applicable to charter schools. 

 

 

F. Annual Enrollment 

 

1. Preliminary Projected Enrollment: No later than November 1 of each year, the 

School shall provide to the Sponsor the School’s Preliminary Projected 

Enrollment for the following school year. The Preliminary Projected Enrollment 

shall not constitute a cap on the School’s enrollment for the following school 

year. 

2. Annual Enrollment Capacity: The Annual Enrollment Capacity shall be annually 

determined by the Governing Board in conjunction with the Sponsor based on the 

factors set forth in section 1002.33(10), Florida Statutes. The School shall provide 

to the Sponsor by March 1 of each year of this Charter, or a date otherwise agreed 

to by the Sponsor and School, the proposed Annual Enrollment Capacity for the 

subsequent school year. Disagreements between the Sponsor and the School 

relating to Annual Enrollment Capacity will be resolved using the dispute 

resolution provisions in this Charter and section 1002.33, Florida Statutes.  The 

School shall not enroll students in excess of the physical capacity of the building, 

unless the School operates multiple sessions, in which case, the physical capacity 

of the School shall not be exceeded during any session. The Annual Enrollment 

Capacity of a School that is designated as High-Performing pursuant to section 

1002.331, Florida Statutes, shall be determined by the Governing Board. 

3. Final Enrollment Projection:  No later than June 1 of each year, the School shall 

provide to the Sponsor the School’s Final Enrollment Projection for the upcoming 

school year. For purposes of this Charter, Final Enrollment Projection is not 

Annual Enrollment Capacity, but is the School’s projection for how many 

students will be enrolled when the school year begins and will serve as the basis 

for initial FEFP payments. 

 

. 

 

. 

 

G. Maintenance of Student Records as Required by Statute 

 

1. The School shall maintain confidentiality of student records as required by federal 

and state law. 

 

2. The School will maintain active records for current students in accordance with 

applicable Florida Statutes and State Board of Education rules. 

 

3. All permanent (Category A) records of students leaving the School, whether by 

graduation, transfer to another public school, or withdrawal to attend another 

school, will be immediately transferred to the District in accordance with Florida 

Page 173 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

Statutes. Records will be transmitted to the District’s records retention 

department. 

 

4. Records of student progress (Category B) will be transferred to the appropriate 

school if a student withdraws to attend another public school or any other school. 

The School may retain copies of the departing student’s academic records created 

during the student’s attendance at the School. 

 

5. Upon the withdrawal of a student from the School, the School will retain the 

student’s original records, except that such records will be immediately transferred 

to another District school when requested by that school. Requests for student 

records from public or private schools outside of the County and private schools 

within the County must be made in writing. Only copies of requested records may 

be provided. Copies only of student records may be provided to parents upon their 

request unless the student is considered an eligible student under FERPA. The 

School will retain the student’s record for three (3) years after student withdrawal 

or until requested by another District public school in this County, whichever 

comes first. At the end of the third year all inactive student records will be returned 

to the District’s records retention department. 

 

6. Upon termination or closure of the School, all student education records and 

administrative records shall be transferred immediately to the Sponsor's records 

retention office for processing and maintenance. 

 

7. The School will comply with all other public record retention requirements for 

non-student related records in a manner consistent with applicable Florida law. The 

School shall comply with Fla. Stat. Chapter 119 (the Public Records Act) and all 

other applicable statutes pertaining to public records. 

 

8. The Sponsor will ensure that all student records will be provided immediately to 

the School upon request and upon enrollment of students in the School from a 

District school. 

 

9. The School must maintain a record of all the students who apply to the School, 

whether or not they are eventually enrolled. The information shall be made 

available to the Sponsor upon written request.  However, such requests may not be 

made until after the October survey period. The School shall maintain 

documentation of each enrollment lottery conducted.  Such documentation shall 

provide sufficient detail to allow the Sponsor to verify that the random selection 

process utilized by the School was conducted in accordance with section 

1002.33(10)(b), Florida Statutes. Records must be maintained in accordance with 

applicable record retention laws. 

 

H. Exceptional students shall be provided with programs implemented in accordance with 

applicable Federal, state and local policies and procedures; and, specifically, the 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 

Page 174 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

of 1973, sections 1000.05 and 1001.42(4) (l) of the Florida Statutes, and Chapter 6A- 6 of 

the Florida Administrative Code. This includes, but is not limited to: 

 

1. A non-discriminatory policy regarding placement, assessment, identification, and 

selection. 

 

2. Free appropriate public education (FAPE). 

 

3. Individual Educational Plans (IEP’s), to include an annual IEP meeting with the 

student’s family. 

 

Students with disabilities will be educated in the least restrictive environment, and 

will be segregated only if the nature and severity of the disability is such that 

education in regular classes with the use of supplementary aids and services cannot 

be achieved satisfactorily. 

 

Those students, whose needs cannot be adequately addressed at the School, as 

determined by the IEP team, will be referred to an appropriate placement within 

the District.  Parents of students with disabilities will be afforded procedural 

safeguards in their native language, consistent with the manner that those 

safeguards are provided in the District’s traditional schools or using the District's 

materials.  Unless the School is specifically for students with disabilities, the 

School shall not request through the School's application a student's IEP or other 

information regarding a student's special needs, nor shall the School access such 

information prior to the enrollment lottery. 

 

Upon enrollment, or notice of acceptance sent to the student, the School may request 

from the District information related to the student's program and needs, including the 

student's most recent IEP, which shall be provided within 10 days. If the School 

believes, upon review of the IEP, that the student's needs cannot be met at the School 

an IEP meeting shall be convened within 30 days.  The Sponsor shall be invited to and 

may attend the meeting, at which time the IEP team shall determine whether the School 

is an appropriate placement for the student. 

 

A representative of the Sponsor shall be invited to participate in all IEP meetings and 

will serve as the LEA representative. The Sponsor retains the right to determine 

whether or not to send a representative to such meetings. However, if no representative 

of the Sponsor will attend an IEP meeting, the Sponsor must designate which 

individual or employment position at the School will serve as LEA representative and 

must provide such individual with training required to serve as LEA representative. 

 

 

4. Due Process Hearing: 

 

i. A student, parent, or guardian who indicates at an IEP, EP, or 504 meeting that 

they wish to file for a due process hearing or State Complaint pursuant to State law and 

Page 175 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

rules shall be given the appropriate forms by the School. These forms shall also be 

provided upon request at any other time. 

 

ii. Due process hearing requests shall be forwarded to the Sponsor’s ESE Director 

and the District’s General Counsel within one (1) school day of receipt. 

 

iii. The Sponsor will select and assign an attorney in consultation with the School. 

The School may also hire an attorney at its cost to consult and cooperate with the 

Sponsor. Final decisions on legal strategies shall be made by the Sponsor’s attorney in 

consultation with the School. 

 

iv. In cooperation with the assigned attorney, the School is responsible for 

scheduling resolution and mediation meetings as required under State and Federal law. 

 

v. The Sponsor shall ensure that: 

(a) The due process hearing is conducted pursuant to applicable State laws 

and rules; 

(b) A final decision is reached; and 

(c) A copy of the decision is mailed to the parties. 

 

vi. The School shall bear all the costs associated with the administrative due 

process hearing, legal representation, discovery, court reporter, and interpreter.  In the 

event that the student, parents, or guardians prevail, either through a hearing or 

settlement, the School shall pay any and all attorneys’ fees, reimbursements, 

compensatory education and any other costs incurred, agreed upon or awarded; 

however, the District shall assume or reimburse the costs of the defense attributable to, 

caused by or through the fault of the District, if any. Costs and fees incurred will be 

automatically reduced from the FTE funds passed through the Sponsor to the School, 

without any penalty of interest, although the School may request and the parties agree 

to a payment plan. 

 

If the School receives a complaint filed or becomes aware of an investigation with the 

Office of Civil Rights or any other governmental entity and the complaint or investigation 

relates to the School and could involve the Sponsor, the School shall within one (1) school 

day notify the Sponsor and provide the Sponsor any documentation from the agency. The 

School shall fully cooperate with the Sponsor during the investigation and proceeding 

and provide the Sponsor any relevant information. The School shall bear all costs 

associated with the investigation. However, the Sponsor shall assume or reimburse the 

costs attributable to, caused by, or through the fault of the Sponsor, if any. 

 

I. ESE administrative services covered by the administrative fee, pursuant to section 

1002.33(20), Florida Statutes, includes professional development related to IEP 

development; access to any electronic IEP system or forms; initial evaluation for ESE 

placement; and other supports and services as agreed to by the School and the District. 

 

J. English for Speakers of Other Languages:  Students at the School who are English 

Page 176 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

Language Learners will be served by English to Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) 

certified personnel who will follow the District’s Plan for English Language Learners 

(ELLs), or an alternate plan that has been approved by the Sponsor. The School shall be 

invited to attend the District’s ESOL Procedures Training(s) and shall comply with 

applicable rules and regulations. 

 

K. Dismissal Policies and Procedures 

 

The School shall implement the dismissal policies as described in the approved 

Application or subsequently submitted to and approved by the Sponsor. If the School 

materially revises the dismissal policies, it shall provide the Sponsor the revised policies 

within 30 days of adoption by the Governing Board. If the Sponsor determines that the 

revised dismissal policies violate applicable law it shall provide the School with written 

notice within 30 days. The School shall have the opportunity to resubmit. 

 

Upon the School’s decision to implement dismissal, the School shall refer the student to 

the District for appropriate placement with the District. Dismissal procedures shall be 

clearly defined in writing and included in any Parent Contract, shared with students and 

parents annually and provided to the District no later than two weeks prior to the opening 

of school each year. In each instance where dismissal is initiated, the parents will receive 

written notice of the dismissal including the reasons for dismissal and a summary of the 

actions taken to assist the student prior to dismissal. The District shall be provided a copy 

of the dismissal notice on the same day as the parent. The School shall work in conjunction 

with the parent(s) and the receiving school to assure that, to the greatest extent possible, 

such dismissals occur at logical transition points in the school year (e.g. grading periods 

or semester breaks) that minimize impact on the student grades and academic 

achievement. 

 

The School may withdraw a student involuntarily for failure to maintain eligibility, such 

as District residency requirements, or for material violation of the School's Student 

Conduct Code, which must also be compliant with IDEA, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 

Act, and the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) for student with disabilities. 

 

The School may not withdraw a student involuntarily for poor academic performance or 

for a minor infraction of the School’s Code of Conduct. The School will ensure that no 

pressure, coercion, negotiation or other inappropriate inducement may be used to attempt 

to have parents or guardians withdraw students from the School. 

 

L. Student Code of Conduct, Suspension and Expulsion 

 

The School will maintain a safe learning environment at all times. The School shall adopt 

a Code of Student Conduct as described in the approved Application. The School will 

report each month to the District the number of violations of the Code, by offense, to be 

included in the District’s discipline reporting, as required by law. The School agrees that 

it will not engage in the corporal punishment of students. Students recommended for 

expulsion or placement in an alternative school will be referred to the Sponsor for 

Page 177 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

appropriate disposition. If the student remains enrolled at the School while placed at an 

alternative school, costs for the alternative school charged to the School, if any, will not 

exceed the Sponsor’s actual cost for such student unless mutually agreed to by the School 

and Sponsor in a contract negotiated separately from the Charter. Students with disabilities 

shall be afforded a manifestation determination if required by the Individuals with 

Disabilities Education Act. 

 

M. School or Parent Contract 

The School agrees to submit any proposed Parent Contracts, including amendments, to the 

Sponsor for review by March 1 annually. The Sponsor shall approve the proposed Parent 

Contract or reject it if it does not comply with applicable law, within 30 days of receipt. If 

the Sponsor rejects the proposed Parent Contract it shall provide its reasons for rejection 

in writing, detailing the legal insufficiency, and shall allow the School to resubmit a revised 

draft. If the School or Sponsor elects to resolve any dispute through the dispute resolution 

procedures, then the deadline for approving the Parent Contract will be extended through 

the conclusion of that dispute resolution process. The School may not accept monetary 

donations in lieu of volunteer hours. 

 

Section 4: Financial Accountability 

 

A. Revenue: State and Local 

 

1. Basis for Funding: Student Reporting 

 

i. School will report the daily attendance of each student to the District to 

meet District attendance reporting requirements, as required by law. 

 

ii. The School agrees to report its student enrollment to the District as 

provided in section 1011.62, Florida Statutes, and in accordance with the 

definitions in section 1011.61, Florida Statutes, at the agreed upon intervals 

and using the method used by the District when recording and reporting 

cost data by program. The District shall include the School’s enrollment 

when recording and reporting cost data by program. The District shall 

include the School’s enrollment in the District’s report of student 

enrollment. The School shall use the Sponsor's electronic data processing 

software system and procedures for the processing of student enrollment, 

attendance, FTE collection, assessment information, IEP's, ELL plans, 504 

plans, and any other required individual student plan. The Sponsor will 

offer training to the School, and invite the School to any subsequent 

training for District staff, in the use of such system and procedures at no 

cost to the School. A representative of the School shall attend such training. 

The Sponsor shall provide the School with equal access to the Sponsor's 

student information systems that are used by traditional public schools in 

the District. 

 

iii. If the School submits data relevant to FTE, Federal, or grant funding that 

Page 178 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

is later determined through the audit procedure to be inaccurate, the School 

shall be responsible for any reimbursement to the State, the United States 

Department of Education or the District for any errors or omissions in data 

that the School submitted provided that the District has timely sent notice 

to the School of alleged errors discovered through such audit(s) so that the 

School, on its own, or through the Sponsor, at the School’s expense may 

participate in any proceedings to challenge or appeal such audit findings.  

After final disposition of any appeals, the District shall deduct any such 

adjustments from the School’s subsequent revenue disbursements evenly 

over the remaining months of the fiscal year or according to an agreed upon 

payment plan. 

 

iv. The District agrees to fund the School for the students enrolled as if they 

are in a basic program or a special program in a District school in a manner 

fully consistent with Florida law. The basis of the funding shall be the sum 

of the District’s operating funds from the Florida Education Finance 

Program (FEFP) as provided in section 1011.62, Florida Statutes, and the 

General Appropriations Act, including gross state and local funds, 

discretionary lottery funds and funds from the District’s current operating 

discretionary millage levy, divided by the total funded weighted full-time 

equivalent students (WFTE) in the District; multiplied by the weighted full-

time equivalent students for the School. 

 

v. If the School’s students or programs meet the eligibility criteria in law, the 

School shall be entitled to its proportionate share of categorical program 

funds included in the total funds available in the FEFP by the Legislature, 

including transportation, the research-based reading allocation, and the 

Florida digital classrooms allocation and any other funds made part of the 

FEFP by the Florida Legislature. 

 

vi. Total funding for the School shall be recalculated during the year to reflect 

the revised calculations under the Florida Education Finance Program by 

the state and the actual weighted full-time equivalent students reported by 

the School during the full-time equivalent student survey periods 

designated by the Commissioner of Education. 

 

2. Millage Levy, if applicable 

 

The District shall provide additional funding to the School via any applicable 

capital outlay or operating millage levied by the Sponsor as required by law 

 

3. Fees to be Charged to the School By the District. 

 

The Sponsor may charge the School an administrative fee in an amount not to 

exceed the maximum rate allowed under section 1002.33(20), Florida Statutes. 

Such fee shall be withheld ratably from the distributions of funds, defined in 

Page 179 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

section 1002.33(17)(b), Florida Statutes, to be made to the School under this 

Charter. Such fee shall cover only those services provided by the Sponsor which 

are required to be covered under such statute. If the School requests services 

from the Sponsor beyond those provided for in statute, the Sponsor and the 

School will enter into a separate written agreement approved by both parties. 

 

The District shall provide the distribution of funds reconciliation 

simultaneously with each revenue disbursement to the School including any 

administrative and other fees and charges withheld. 

 

4. Distribution of Funds Schedule 

 

i. The Sponsor shall calculate and submit twelve (12) monthly or twenty- four bi-

monthly payments to the account specified by the School. Each payment will 

be one-twelfth (1/12) or one twenty-fourth (1/24) of the funds described in 

Section 4.A.1., above, less the administrative fee set forth in Section 4.A.3, 

above. The first payment will be made by July 15 of the School’s first year of 

operation. Subsequent payments will be made no later than the 15th of each 

month beginning with August 15. 

 

 

ii. For each year of the Charter, monthly payments will be calculated as 

follows: 

a. July through October payment shall be based on the 

School’s Final Projected Enrollment as determined under the 

provisions of Section 3.F. of this Charter, if a minimum of 75 

percent of the Final Projected Enrollment is entered into the 

Sponsor's Student Information System by the first day of the current 

month. Otherwise, or if the School’s enrollment exceeds its 

Projected Enrollment, the Sponsor shall fund the School based on 

the number of students actually registered as of the first day of the 

month. 

b. Thereafter, the results of full-time equivalent student 

membership surveys shall be used in adjusting the amount of funds 

distributed monthly to the School for the remainder of the fiscal 

year. 

c. Payments will be adjusted retroactively for prior period 

adjustments. 

 

iii. Payment shall not be made, without penalty of interest, for students 

in excess of the School facility’s valid capacity as determined by the 

School’s Certificate of Occupancy, Certificate of Use, or Fire Permit 

or in excess of the Annual Enrollment Capacity for the school year 

(whichever is less). In the event that the required county or 

municipality facility permits do not indicate a facility capacity, the 

School must submit a letter from the architect of record certifying 

Page 180 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

the capacity of the facility. 

 

iv. The Sponsor may withhold monthly payments, without penalty of 

interest, if the School’s Certificate of Occupancy, Certificate of 

Use, or Fire Permit has expired or has otherwise become invalid. 

The School shall notify the Sponsor immediately if any of the 

aforementioned documents has expired or become invalid. The 

Sponsor shall release, in full, all funds withheld under this 

provision when the School has cured the deficiency.  Payments will 

not be withheld pending receipt of the School’s Certificate of 

Occupancy, Certificate of Use or Fire Permit for its initial location 

or any subsequent location, so long as the School has met 

applicable statutory deadlines for obtaining such approvals.   

 

Additionally, funding for the School shall be adjusted during the 

year as follows: 

 

a. In the event of a state holdback or a proration, which 

reduces District funding, the School’s funding will be 

reduced proportionately to the extent required by law. 

 

b. In the event that the District exceeds the state cap for WFTE 

for Group 2 programs established by the Legislature resulting 

in unfunded WFTE for the District, then the School’s funding 

shall be reduced to reflect its proportional share of any 

unfunded WFTE. 

 

v. The District shall make every effort to ensure that the School 

receives timely and efficient reimbursement of funds. Other than 

those payments provided for in this Charter, for which other 

requirements for timely payments have been made, the payment 

shall be issued no later than ten (10) working days after the District 

receives a distribution of state or federal funds. If a warrant for 

payment is not issued within ten (10) working days after the receipt 

of funding by the District, or the due date set forth in this Charter, 

the District shall pay to the School, in addition to the amount of the 

scheduled disbursement, interest at a rate of one percent (1%) per 

month calculated on a daily basis on the unpaid balance from the 

expiration of the ten (10) day period until such time as the warrant 

is issued. 

 

Payment shall be made to the account in a state-approved depository 

specified and approved by the Governing Board at a public meeting.  

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, distribution of FTE funds may 

be withheld, upon written notice by the Sponsor, if any of the 

Page 181 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

following required documents are more than thirty (30) day 

overdue: 

 

i. The School's monthly/quarterly financial statement as 

required by State Board of Education Rule 6A-1.0081, F.A.C. 

ii. The School's annual financial audit as required by 

section 218.39, F.S and this Charter. 

 

The Sponsor shall release, in full, funds withheld under this provision 

within 10 days of receipt of the documents that resulted in the 

withholding of funds. 

 

B. Federal Funding 

 

Pursuant to section 1002.33(17)(d), Florida Statutes, the Sponsor shall include the School in 

all requests for federal funds for which the School, or its students, is eligible, including 

without limitations, Title I, Title II, and IDEA funds. The Sponsor will provide copies of 

federal fund grant requests to the School no later than the date they are submitted to FDOE 

or a federal agency, as applicable. 

 

Pursuant to section 1002.33(17), Florida Statutes, unless otherwise mutually agreed to by 

the School and Sponsor, and consistent with state and federal rules and regulations 

governing the use and disbursement of federal funds, the Sponsor shall reimburse the 

School on a monthly basis for all invoices submitted by the School for federal funds 

available to the Sponsor for the benefit of the School, the School's students, and the 

School's students as public students in the District.  If the School elects to receive funds 

in lieu of services, the following provisions apply: 

 

1. The Sponsor shall provide to the School by July 15 of each year, or at other 

times of the school year if other federal funds become available, a projected 

annual allocation for all federal funds, as described above, that the School may 

draw as reimbursement for services provided. The projected annual allocation 

shall be based upon the School’s Final Projected Enrollment as provided for in 

3.F. of this Charter or other data as applicable to the federal funds to be 

allocated. 

 

2. The School shall provide to the Sponsor a plan that describes how the funds will 

be used in accordance with applicable federal requirements as required by law. 

The plan must include sufficient detail to allow review of the plan for compliance 

with applicable federal regulations. The Sponsor shall have 30 days to review and 

approve the plan. If the Sponsor deems the plan unacceptable, the Sponsor shall 

provide the School with written notice detailing the deficiencies and provide an 

opportunity to cure. 

 

3. The School shall submit invoices by the 15th of each month to receive 

reimbursement for allowable expenses incurred during the prior month. The 

Page 182 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

School shall maintain documentation of all expenditures in accordance with 

applicable law and provide to the Sponsor upon request. Expenditures shall be 

included in required monthly or quarterly financial statements. 

 

4. The Sponsor shall reimburse the School within 30 days of receipt of the invoice. If 

the Sponsor determines that the invoice is insufficient, it shall provide written 

notice to the School within ten (10) days of receipt. 

 

5. If the School and Sponsor mutually agree that the School will receive services 

funded through federal funds in lieu of the funds, such services will be provided to 

the School in the same manner as such services are provided to school district 

schools and to the students enrolled at school district schools. 

 

6. The per pupil allocation of Title I funds will be determined annually in 

accordance with federal and state Title I regulations by the District for that 

purpose. The allocation of Title I Funds shall be made in accordance with the 

Public Charter Extension Act of 1998 and all corresponding guidance and 

regulations and applicable Florida law. 

 

7. Any capital outlay item purchased with Title I must be identified and labeled for 

Title I property audits. The property must be returned to the District if the School 

is no longer eligible for Title I funding. 

 

8. Should the School receive Title I funds it will employ highly qualified staff: 

teachers that are certified and teaching infield; Para-educators with two years of 

college, an AA degree, or that have passed an equivalent exam. 

 

9. If the School accepts Title I funds, the School will receive a separate parent 

involvement allocation that must be spent in support of parental involvement 

activities and the School will implement a parent involvement program subject to 

the provisions of Title I federal law, currently section 1118 of NCLB. 

 

10. The District and regional Title I staff will provide technical assistance and support 

in order to ensure that Title I guidelines are being followed at the School and that 

students are meeting high content and performance standards. 

 

11. Medicaid School Match Program Participation:  Under the Medicaid Certified 

School Match Program, the School may be eligible to seek reimbursement for 

certain services provided to Medicaid-eligible students who qualify for services 

under the IDEA part B or C. In order to seek reimbursements, the School shall 

follow the procedures established by the Agency for Health Care Administration 

for Medicaid-reimbursable services to eligible students in the School. 

 

C. Federal Grants 

 

The School agrees to comply with the District’s rules, policies and procedures for federal 

Page 183 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

and state Grants Management for grants submitted through the District, which include, 

but are not limited to: 

 

1. Working with the appropriate District staff to facilitate District’s approval for all 

federal and state grant applications developed by the School for which the District 

will serve as fiscal agent 

 

2. Submitting a grant application executive summary and grant description for each 

such grant processed, and submitting an annual end-of-the-year Grant Final 

Report. 

 

3. Ensuring that all grant indirect costs are appropriated, if allowed, to the district 

for applicable Federal Grants that are approved, monitored and/or disbursed by 

the Sponsor. For purposes of the Public Charter School Program Grant, 

authorized under Title V, Part B, of the Elementary and Secondary Education 

Act, no indirect costs may be appropriated to the Sponsor unless the School 

voluntarily agrees to such appropriation. 

 

D. Charter School Capital Outlay Funds 

 

1. Application 

 

If the School meets the FDOE criteria for Charter School Capital Outlay Funds, 

the School must submit a Capital Outlay Plan pursuant to the process required by 

FDOE. 

 

2. Distribution 

 

Should the School receive a Capital Outlay allocation, the District shall distribute 

such funds to the School within 10 days of receipt of such funds from the FDOE. 

 

E. Restriction on Charging Tuition or Fees 

 

The School shall not charge tuition or fees, except those fees allowable by statute that are 

normally charged by other public schools in the District. If the School intends to charge 

fees, it shall submit its proposed fee schedule to the District for review no later than March 

1 prior to the School Year in which the fees are intended to be charged, or within 30 days 

of contract execution for the initial school year. If the District believes that the proposed 

fee schedule does not meet the requirements of this subsection or applicable law, it will 

submit comments to the School and request additional information no later than thirty (30) 

days following receipt of the proposed fee schedule. If the parties are unable to resolve 

such issues, the matter will be submitted for alternative dispute resolution as set forth 

herein and Florida law. Fees shall not be a barrier to enrollment. 

 

F. Budget 

 

Page 184 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

1. Annual Budget 

 

The School shall annually prepare an operating budget for the School. The budget 

shall be formally adopted by the Governing Board at a scheduled public meeting. 

The adoption of the budget shall be documented in the minutes of the meeting. The 

School shall provide to the Sponsor a copy of the approved budget and a copy of 

the minutes of the Governing Board meeting documenting adoption of the budget, 

no later than August 30, for the fiscal year. 

 

2. Amended Budget 

Any amendments to the adopted budget shall be approved by the Governing Board 

at a scheduled meeting thereof and a copy provided to the District within 10 business 

days of the meeting at which the budget was amended. 

 

G. Financial Records, Reports and Monitoring 

 

1. Maintenance of Financial Record 

 

The School shall use the standard state format contained in the Financial and 

Program Cost Accounting and Reporting for Florida Schools (The Red Book) for 

all financial transactions and maintenance of financial records. 

 

2. Financial and Program Cost Accounting and Reporting for Florida Schools The 

School agrees to do an annual cost accounting in a form and manner consistent 

with generally accepted governmental accounting standards in Florida. The 

financial statements are to be prepared in accordance with the provisions of section 

1002.33(9), Florida Statutes. 

 

3. Financial Reports 

 

i. Monthly or Quarterly Financial Reports 

 

The School will submit a monthly or quarterly, as applicable, financial 

statement pursuant to section 1002.33(9), Florida Statutes, and Rule 6A-

1.0081, Florida Administrative Code, to the Sponsor no later than the last 

day of the month following the month being reported or in the case of a 

High-Performing charter school, financial reports shall be submitted 

quarterly as provided by Florida law. The monthly or quarterly report will 

be in the format prescribed by the FDOE. 

 

The parties agree that the Sponsor may reasonably request, in accordance 

with section 1002.33(5)(b)1.j., Florida Statutes, documents on the School's 

financial operations beyond the monthly financial statement and the School 

shall provide in a reasonable timeframe. 

 

ii. Annual Property Inventory 

Page 185 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

 

The School will submit annually to the Sponsor a property inventory of all 

capital assets or additions to capital assets purchased with public funds 

(including grant funds). This includes land or existing buildings, 

improvements to grounds, construction of buildings, additions to building, 

remodeling of buildings, initial equipment, new and replacement 

equipment, and software. This shall include furniture, fixtures, and 

equipment. The property inventory shall include the date of purchase, 

description of the item purchased, the cost of the item, and the item 

location. The property inventory shall be submitted to the sponsor annually 

at the same time School’s Annual Audit is submitted. 

 

iii. Program Cost Report 

 

The School agrees to deliver to the Sponsor its annual cost report in a form 

and manner consistent with generally accepted governmental accounting 

standard in Florida, no later than the last business day in July. 

 

iv. Annual Financial Audit 

 

The School will annually obtain a financial audit, from a licensed Certified 

Public Accountant or Auditor, selected pursuant to section 218.391, Florida 

Statutes. The audit will be performed in accordance with Generally 

Accepted Auditing Standards; Governing Standards and the Rules of the 

Auditor General for the State of Florida. The School will provide a copy of 

its annual financial audit (including any School responses to audit findings) 

to the Sponsor no later than September 30. 

 

The Sponsor reserves the right to perform additional audits and 

investigations at its expense as part of the Sponsor's financial monitoring 

responsibilities as it deems necessary to ensure fiscal accountability and 

sound financial management. 

 

v. Form 990, if applicable 

 

The School shall organize as, or be operated by, a nonprofit organization. 

If the School has obtained federal tax exempt status as a 501(c) (3) 

organization, the School shall provide the Sponsor copies of any 

correspondence from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) confirming the 

School’s 501(c)(3) status and will provide to the Sponsor a copy of its 

annual Form 990 within 15 business days after filing it with the IRS. 

Notwithstanding anything set forth in this Charter, the Sponsor does not 

covenant to extend or pledge its own tax-exempt status in any way for the 

use and benefit of the School. 

 

vi. The School shall provide all required financial documents noted herein in 

Page 186 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

a timely manner consistent with the terms of this Charter. 

 

4. The School's fiscal year shall be July 1 – June 30 

 

5. If the School’s annual financial audit reveals a deficit financial position, the 

auditors are required to notify the School’s Governing Board, the Sponsor and 

the FDOE in writing. The auditor shall report such findings in the form of an 

exit interview to the principal or the principal administrator of the School and 

the chair of the Governing Board within seven (7) business days after finding 

the deficit position. 

 

6. A final annual financial audit report shall be provided to the entire Governing 

Board, the Sponsor and the FDOE within fourteen (14) business days after the 

exit interview. 

 

7. If the School experiences one of the financial conditions included in section 

1002.345, Florida Statutes, it shall address such findings as required by law. 

 

H. Financial Management of School 

 

1. The Governing Board shall be responsible for the operation and fiscal 

management of the School. The fiscal management of the School shall be 

conducted in a manner consistent with the provisions of the Application. 

 

2. The School shall adhere to any additional applicable financial requirements 

mandated by State or Federal laws and regulations. 

 

3. Notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary, the Sponsor shall not 

 

i. Guarantee payment for any purchases made by the School; 

 

ii. Guarantee payment for any debts incurred by the School; 

 

iii. Guarantee payment for any loans taken out by the School. 

 

iv. Lend its good faith and credit in order for the School to obtain a loan or 

other forms of credit. 

 

The School shall not suggest or represent to third parties, including, but not 

limited to, lenders, vendors, creditors, other business entities or their 

representatives, governmental entities, or other individuals anything to the 

contrary of the immediately preceding sentences. 

 

4. The School agrees to provide to the District, upon request, proof of sufficient funds 

or a letter of credit to assure prompt payment of operating expenses associated with 

the School, including but not limited to, the amount of any lease payments, teacher 

Page 187 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

and other staff salaries and benefits, transportation cost, etc. The parties stipulate 

that provision of a financially feasible, adopted budget, shall be sufficient for 

meeting this requirement. 

 

I. Description of Internal Operating Procedures 

 

The School shall develop and implement sufficient internal operating procedures as 

described in the approved Application to ensure sound financial management. 

 

Section 5: Facilities 

 

A. The School shall be located at 114 Canova Road, Fleming Island, Florida 32003.  The 

School must provide a copy of the lease agreement, use agreement, or ownership 

documents and certificate of occupancy or temporary certificate of occupancy 

documenting compliance with all applicable codes no later than fifteen (15) days prior to 

the School's opening. The School shall make facilities accessible to Sponsor for safety 

inspection purposes. A facility for students to utilize during the class day is a material 

requirement of this Charter. If the facility is sub-leased, the School shall provide, upon 

request, documentation verifying the owner of the facility has approved the School’s use 

of the facility if such approval is required. 

 

Any proposed change in location or an additional location must be requested in writing to 

the Sponsor, and any new location must meet the same standards contained herein and 

applicable law. If the proposed location will not result in a substantial change to the student 

population or burden to the currently enrolled students and their families and does not alter 

the school’s mission, approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The School shall not 

change locations without prior written approval from the Sponsor, Superintendent or 

Superintendent’s designee. 

 

Notwithstanding the aforementioned, in unforeseen circumstances or emergencies, if the 

facility is damaged or unable to safely house students and staff, the School must notify the 

Sponsor, immediately, and secure an alternative location to ensure no interruption in 

instruction. The alternative location shall be subject to all facility requirements indicated 

in this section and applicable law. If the circumstances result in limited interruption of 

instruction the School shall ensure that the required number of instructional hours is 

provided. 

 

B. The School shall use facilities that comply with the requirements in section 1002.33(18), 

Florida Statutes. The School shall provide the District with a list of the facilities to be 

used and their location. The School agrees to periodic health and safety inspections 

conducted by District safety staff. 

 

C. In the event the School is dissolved or is otherwise terminated, all property of the Sponsor 

and improvements, furnishings, and equipment purchased with public funds shall 

automatically revert to full ownership by the Sponsor, subject to complete satisfaction of 

any lawful liens or encumbrances. Any unencumbered public funds from the School, 

Page 188 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

Sponsor property and improvements, furnishings, and equipment purchased with public 

funds, or financial or other records pertaining to the School, in the possession of any 

person, entity, or holding company, other than the School, shall be held in trust upon the 

Sponsor’s request, until any appeal status is resolved. 

 

D. If the School is a Conversion School pursuant to section 1002.33, Florida Statutes, the 

Sponsor shall maintain the facilities as required by section 1002.33(18), Florida Statutes. 

 

E. The School shall not display any religious or partisan political symbols, statues or 

artifacts, on the property and facilities where the School will operate. 

 

 

 

Section 6: Transportation 

 

A. The School shall provide transportation to the School's students consistent with the 

requirements of Part I.E. of Chapter 1006, Florida Statues, section 1012.45 and section 

1002.33(20)(c), Florida Statutes. The School may provide transportation through an 

agreement or contract with the Sponsor, a private provider, or parents. 

 

B. Reasonable Distance [for purposes of this Charter]: The School and Sponsor shall 

cooperate in making arrangements that ensure that transportation is not a barrier to equal 

access for all students residing within 2 miles. 

 

C. The parties may agree for the District to provide transportation to and from the School. If 

such agreement is reached it shall be the subject of a separate contract. If agreement is 

reached with the Sponsor the School may utilize, at the School’s expense, the District’s 

transportation services for extracurricular events, field trips, and other activities on the 

same basis and terms as other District schools. 

 

D. The School shall comply with all applicable transportation safety requirements. Should 

the School choose to implement its own transportation plan rather than contract with the 

District for transportation services, it shall submit a transportation plan to the District for 

review and approval. The School shall provide the District the name of the private 

transportation provider and a copy of the signed contract no later than 10 business days 

prior to the use of the service. 

 

E. If the School submits data relevant to FTE funding for transportation that is later 

determined through the audit procedure to be inaccurate, the School shall be responsible 

for any reimbursement to the Sponsor or State arising as a result of any errors or omissions, 

misrepresentations or inaccurate projections for which the School is responsible  provided 

that the District has timely sent notice to the School of alleged errors discovered through 

such audit(s), so that the School, on its own, or through the Sponsor, at the School’s 

expense, may participate in any proceedings to challenge or appeal such audit findings. 

After final disposition of any appeals, the Sponsor shall deduct such assessed amount from 

the next available payment otherwise due to the School, without penalty of interest. Any 

Page 189 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

deficit incurred by the School shall be the sole fiscal responsibility of the School and the 

Sponsor shall have no liability for the same. 

 

Section 7: Food Services 

 

The School shall provide food services to its students consistent with applicable Florida 

Statutes. If the School elects to participate in the National School Lunch Program it shall 

follow all applicable federal rules and regulations. 

 

Section 8: Insurance & Indemnification 

 

A. The School agrees to provide the following proof of insurance: 

 

1. Errors and Omissions coverage to include prior acts, sexual harassment, civil rights 

and employment discrimination, breach of contract, insured versus insured, 

consultants and independent contractors and with minimum policy limits of 

$2,000,000.00. The insurance shall be subject to a maximum deductible not to 

exceed $25,000 per claim. If the insurance is on a claims-made basis, the School 

shall maintain, without interruption, the Professional Liability Insurance until three 

(3) years after termination of this Charter; 

 

2. General liability coverage written on an occurrence form with minimum policy 

limits of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and an aggregate limit of $2,000,000.00; 

 

3. Business automobile coverage with the same limits as general liability. 

 

B. Property insurance shall be secured for buildings and contents. Property Insurance 

coverage for the “Building” includes the structure, including permanently installed 

fixtures, machinery and equipment, outdoor fixtures, and personal property to service the 

premises. If the Building is under construction, the School shall provide evidence of 

property insurance for the additions under construction and alterations, repairs, including 

materials, equipment, supplies, and temporary structures within 100 feet of the premises. 

If the School leases the site location, then the School shall provide on a form acceptable to 

the Sponsor evidence of business personal property insurance, to include furniture, 

fixtures, equipment and machinery used in the School. 

 

C. The School further agrees to secure and maintain property insurance for the School’s 

personal property, and to insure all of the District’s owned property, if any, to be used by 

the School to its full fair market value with the Sponsor named as loss payee. The insurance 

must be sufficient to provide for replacement of property. 

 

D. The School agrees to provide adequate Workers’ Compensation insurance coverage as 

required by Chapter 440, Florida Statutes. 

 

E. Fidelity Bond and Crime Coverage: The School shall purchase Employees Dishonesty 

or Crime Insurance for all Governing Board members and employees, including Faithful 

Page 190 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

Performance of duty coverage for the School’s administrators and Governing Board with 

an insurance carrier authorized to do business in the State of Florida and coverage shall 

be in the amount of no less than one million ($1,000,000) dollars per loss/two million 

($2,000,000) dollars annual aggregate.  In lieu of Employee Dishonesty or Crime 

Insurance, Sponsor is willing to accept Fidelity Bond coverage of equal coverage 

amount. 

 

F. No later than 30 days prior to the opening of school, the School shall furnish the District 

with fully completed certificates of all insurance policies, signed by an authorized 

representative of the insurer(s) confirming the coverage begins by July 1. The certificates 

shall be issued to the Sponsor and name the Sponsor as an additional insured. Until such 

time as the insurance is no longer required to be maintained by the School, the School 

shall provide the School Board evidence of the renewal or replacement of the insurance 

no less than thirty (30) days before expiration or termination of the required insurance for 

which evidence was provided.  Should any of the above described policies (A-E) be 

canceled before the expiration date, written notice to the Sponsor shall be delivered in 

accordance with the policy provisions or within 10 days of cancellation, whichever is 

sooner. 

 

G. Failure to secure and continuously maintain all insurance listed in items A-E without cure 

after written notice above may constitute grounds for termination of this charter. 

 

H. The School agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Sponsor, its members, officers, 

employees and agents, harmless from any and all claims, actions, costs, expenses, 

damages, and liabilities, including reasonable attorney’s fees, arising out of, connected 

with or resulting from: (a) the negligence, intentional wrongful act, misconduct or 

culpability of the School’s members, officers, or employees or other agents in connection 

with and arising out of any services within the scope of this Charter; (b) the School’s 

material breach of this Charter or law; (c) any failure by the School to pay its suppliers or 

any subcontractors. In addition, the School shall indemnify, protect and hold the District 

harmless against all claims and actions brought against the District by reason of any actual 

or alleged infringement of patent or other proprietary rights in any material, process, 

machine or appliance used by the School, except when Sponsor supplied, or required 

School to use that material, process, machine, or appliance, and any claims or actions 

related to violation of any state or Federal statutes or regulations including those 

referenced in this Charter. The School shall not indemnify Sponsor for intentional or 

negligent conduct of Sponsor or any other cause of action caused by or through the fault 

of the Sponsor. 

 

I. Applicable to All Coverages the School Procures 

 

1. Other Coverages:   The insurance provided by the School shall apply on a primary 

basis and any other insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Sponsor or its 

members, officers, employees, or agents, shall be in excess of the insurance provided 

by or on behalf of/ the School. 

2. Deductibles and Retention: Except as otherwise specified, the insurance maintained by 

Page 191 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

the School shall apply on a first-dollar basis without application of deductible or self- 

insurance retention. 

3. Liability and Remedies: Compliance with the insurance requirements of this Charter 

shall not limit the liability of the School, its subcontractors, its sub-subcontractors, its 

employees or its agents to the Sponsor or others. Any remedy provided to the Sponsor 

or its members, officers, employees, or agents by the insurance shall be in addition to 

and not in lieu of any other remedy available under the Charter or otherwise. 

4. Subcontractors: The School shall require its subcontractors and its sub-subcontractors 

to maintain any and all insurance required by law. 

5. Waiver of Subrogation: All policies will be endorsed for waiver of subrogation in favor 

of the Sponsor. 

6. Defense outside the limits: Whenever possible, coverage for School Leader’s Errors 

and Omission and Sexual Abuse Liability policies should be written with “Defense 

Costs outside the limits”. This term ensures that limits are available to pay claims rather 

having attorney’s fees erode the available claim dollars. 

 

J. The District agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the School, its members, officers, 

employees and agents, harmless from any and all claims, actions, costs, expenses, 

damages, and liabilities, including reasonable attorney’s fees, arising out of, connected 

with or resulting from: (a) the negligence, intentional wrongful act, misconduct or 

culpability of the District’s members, officers, employees or other agents in connection 

with and arising out of any services within the scope of this Charter; or (b) the District’s 

material breach of this Charter or law. In addition, the Sponsor shall indemnify, protect 

and hold the School harmless against all claims and actions brought against the School by 

reason of any actual or alleged infringement of patent or other proprietary rights in any 

material, process, machine or appliance used by the District or required by the District to 

be used by the School, and any claims or actions related to violation of any state or Federal 

statutes or regulations including those referenced in this Charter. 

 

K. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, through such indemnification 

set forth in Sections 8(H) and 8(J) above, the District and the School do not waive 

sovereign immunity to the extent sovereign immunity is available or beyond the limited 

waiver of sovereign immunity set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.  In the event 

of any claims described in Sections 8(H) and 8(J) above, the School and Sponsor shall 

notify one another of any such claim promptly upon receipt of same. The School and 

Sponsor shall each have the option to defend such claims with their own counsel at the 

expense of the other party.  If the Sponsor or School choose to not hire their own counsel 

to defend, the other party shall assume the defense of any such claim and have authority 

in the defense thereof. The parties' obligation to indemnify one another shall survive the 

termination of this Charter. 

 

L. Notification of Third-Party Claim, Demand, or Other Action:  The School and Sponsor 

shall notify each other of the existence of any third-party claim, demand or other action 

giving rise to a claim for indemnification under this provision (a “third-party claim”) and 

shall give each other a reasonable opportunity to defend the same at its own expense and 

with its own counsel, provided that the Sponsor shall at all times have the right to 

Page 192 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

participate in such defense at its own expense.  If, within a reasonable amount of time 

after receipt of notice of a third-party claim, the School or Sponsor fails to undertake to 

defend, the other party shall have the right, but not the obligation, to defend and to 

compromise or settle (exercising reasonable business judgment) the third-party claim for 

the account.  The School or the Sponsor shall make available to each other, at their 

expense, such information and assistance as each shall request in connection with the 

defense of a third-party claim. 

 

M. Notice of Claims 

 

1. Time to Submit 

 

The School shall provide the Sponsor with proof of insurance pursuant to Section 

8(F) of this Charter. 

 

2. Notice of Cancellation 

 

The evidence of insurance shall provide that the District be given no less than sixty 

(60) days written notice prior to cancellation. 

 

3. Renewal or Replacement 

Until such time as the insurance is no longer required to be maintained by the 

School, the School shall provide the District with evidence of the renewal or 

replacement of the insurance no less than thirty (30) days before the expiration or 

termination of the required insurance for which evidence was provided. 

 

Section 9: Governance 

 

A. Governance of the School will be in accordance with the Bylaws or other organizational 

documents of the School and as described in the Application. The general direction and 

management of the affairs of the School shall be vested in the Governing Board with a 

minimum of 3 members. A majority of the voting members of the Governing Board shall 

constitute a quorum. A majority of those members of the Governing Board present shall 

be necessary to act. Members of the Governing Board may attend in person or by means 

of communications media technology used in accordance with rules adopted by the 

Administration Commission under s. 120.54(5), Florida Statutes. The Governing Board’s 

primary role will be to set policy, provide financial oversight, annually adopt and maintain 

an operating budget, exercise continuing oversight over the School's operations, and 

communicate the vision of the School to community members. It shall be the duty of the 

Governing Board to keep a complete record of all its actions and corporate affairs and 

supervise all officers and agents of the School and to see that their duties are properly 

performed. 

 

The Governing Board must appoint a representative to facilitate parental involvement, 

provide access to information, assist parents and others with questions and concerns, and 

resolve disputes. The representative must reside in the school district in which the School 

Page 193 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

is located and may be a Governing Board member, employee of the School, or individual 

contracted to represent the Governing Board. If the Governing Board oversees multiple 

charter schools in the same school district, the Governing Board must appoint a separate 

individual representative for each charter school in the district. The representative’s 

contact information must be provided annually, in writing, to parents and posted 

prominently on the School’s website. 

 

All meetings and communications involving members of the Governing Board shall be 

held in compliance with Florida’s Sunshine Law. 

 

The Board shall have at least two public meetings per school year within the District. The 

meetings must be noticed, open, and accessible to the public, and attendees must be 

provided an opportunity to receive information and provide input regarding the School’s 

operations. The appointed representative and the School’s principal or director, or his or 

her equivalent, must be physically present at each meeting. 

 

All members of the Governing Board will be required to attend Governance training and 

refresher courses as required by section 1002.33, Florida Statute, and Rule 6A-6.0784, 

Florida Administrative Code. 

 

The Governing Board will serve as the sole responsible fiscal agent for setting the 

policies guiding finance and operation. School policies are decided by the Governing 

Board, and the Principal ensures that those policies are implemented. 

 

The School will be a private employer and will not participate in the Florida Retirement 

System (FRS); however, the School may consider becoming a public employer and 

participating in the FRS in the future. 

 

B. The School shall be organized as a Florida nonprofit organization. 

 

C. The Bylaws or other organizational documents of the School shall establish the 

procedures by which members of the Governing Board are appointed and removed and 

the election of officers. The Governing Board will develop and implement policies 

regarding educational philosophy, program, and financial procedures. The Governing 

Board will oversee assessment and accountability procedures to assure that the School’s 

student performance standards are met or exceeded. 

 

1. The Governing Board shall exercise continuing oversight over the School’s 

operations and will be held accountable to its students, parents or guardians, and 

the community at large, through a continuous cycle of planning, evaluation, and 

reporting as set forth in section 1002.33, Florida Statutes. 

 

2. The Governing Board will be responsible for the over-all policy decision making 

of the School, including the annual approval of the budget. 

 

3. Upon nomination and prior to appointment to the Governing Board, a member 

Page 194 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

shall be fingerprinted pursuant to section 1002.33(12)(g), Florida Statutes. The 

cost of the fingerprinting is the responsibility of the School or Governing Board 

member. Prospective Governing Board members whose fingerprint check results 

warrant disqualification under the Statute shall not be appointed to the board. 

 

4 The Governing Board shall ensure that the School has retained the services of a 

certified public accountant or auditor for the annual financial audit, pursuant to 

section 1002.345(2), Florida Statutes, who shall submit the report to the 

Governing Board. 

 

5. The Governing Board shall review and approve the audit report, including any 

audit findings and recommendations for the financial recovery plan. 

 

6. The Governing Board shall perform the duties set forth in section 1002.345, 

Florida Statutes, including monitoring any financial corrective action plan or 

financial recovery plan. 

 

7. No member of the Governing Board or their immediate family will receive 

compensation, directly or indirectly from the School or the School's operations. 

No School or management company employee, or his or her spouse, shall be a 

member of the Governing Board.  Violation of this provision or any violation of 

sections 112.313(2),(3),(7) and (12) and section 112.3143, Florida Statutes, by a 

member of the Board, shall constitute a material breach of this Charter. 

 

8. Any change in Governing Board membership must be reported to Sponsor 

in writing within 5 business days of the change. 

 

D. The School shall allow reasonable access to its facilities and records to duly authorized 

representatives of the District. Conversely, the District shall allow reasonable access to its 

records to duly authorized representatives of the School to the extent allowable by law. 

 

To the extent the School is provided access to Sponsor's data systems, all School 

employees and students will be bound by Sponsor's computer policies and standards 

regarding data privacy and system security. 

 

E. If an organization (management organization), including but not limited to: 1) a 

management company, 2) an educational service provider, or 3) a parent organization, will 

be managing or providing significant services to the School, the contract for services 

between the management organization and the Governing Board shall be provided to the 

Sponsor and attached as an appendix to this Charter. Any contract between the 

management organization and the School must ensure that: 

 

1. Members of the Governing Board or their spouses will not be employees of the 

management organization, nor should they be compensated for their service on 

the Board or selected to serve on the Board by the management organization. 

 

Page 195 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

2. The Governing Board retains the right to hire an independent attorney, accountant, 

and audit firm representing and working for, or on behalf of, the School. 

Notwithstanding, the Governing Board and the management organization may 

contract for such services as determined by the management agreement and as 

otherwise allowed by law. The Governing Board shall use an audit firm that is 

independent from the management organization for the purposes of completing the 

annual financial audit required under section 218.39, Florida Statutes. 

 

3. The contract will clearly define each party’s rights and responsibilities including 

specific services provided by the management organization and the fees for those 

services and specifies reasonable and feasible terms under which either party may 

terminate the contract. 

 

4. All equipment and furnishings that are purchased with public funds will be the 

property of the School, not the management organization and any fund balance 

remaining at the end of each fiscal year will belong to the School, not the 

management organization. 

 

5. All loans from the management organization to the School, such as facility loans 

or loans for cash flow, will be appropriately documented and will be repaid at a 

rate no higher than market rates at the time of the loan. 

 

6. A copy of any material changes to the contract between the management 

organization and the Governing Board shall be submitted to the District within five 

(5) days of execution. The Sponsor shall have 30 days to review the material 

changes. If the changes violate the terms of this Charter or applicable law the 

Sponsor shall provide written notice to the School which shall include a 

description of the violations. The School may address the concerns or initiate the 

dispute resolution process included in this Charter. 

 

7. The management organization will perform its duties in compliance with this 

Charter. 

 

F. Any default or breach of the terms of this Charter by the management company shall 

constitute a default or breach under the terms of this Charter by the School unless the 

School cures such breach after written notice. 

 

Section 10: Human Resources 

 

A. The School shall select its own personnel. 

 

B. The School’s employment practices shall be nonsectarian. 

 

C. The teachers employed by or under contract to the School shall be certified as required by 

Chapter 1012. 

 

Page 196 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

D. Employees of the School may participate in professional development activities offered 

by the District. Any costs associated with professional development for which there is an 

additional fee, and for which no Federal funding has been provided for such purposes to 

the Sponsor, will be the responsibility of the School or individual School employee. 

 

E. The School may not employ an individual to provide instructional services or to serve as a 

teacher’s aide if the individual’s certification or licensure as an educator is suspended or 

revoked by this or any other state. 

 

F. This Charter makes the following full disclosure of the identity of all relatives employed 

by the School who are related to the School owner, president, chairperson of the Governing 

Board, superintendent, Governing Board member, principal, assistant principal, or any 

other person employed by the School who has equivalent decision-making authority per 

Fla. Stat. § 1002.33(7) (a) (18): 

 

[INSERT NAMES AND RELATIONSHIPS HERE] 

 

If the relative is employed after execution of this Charter, the School shall disclose to the 

District, within 10 business days, the employment of any person who is a relative as 

defined in section 1002.33(7)(a)18., Florida Statutes. 

 

The School shall comply with the restriction on employment of relatives, pursuant to 

section 1002.33(24), Florida Statutes. 

 

G. The School may not knowingly employ an individual who has resigned from a school or 

school district in lieu of disciplinary action with respect to child welfare or safety or who 

has been dismissed for just cause by any school or school district with respect to child 

welfare or safety or who is under current suspension from any school or school district. 

 

H. The School shall disclose to the parents the qualifications of its teachers in the manner 

required by law. The School shall provide to the District, prior to the opening of school, 

the qualifications and assignments of all staff members using the Sponsor’s designated 

database. Teaching assignments must match the State’s course code directory numbers. 

Changes will be provided to the District within 3 work days of hiring, granting leaves of 

absence, or terminating teachers. 

 

I. The School shall implement policies and procedures for background screening of all 

prospective employees, volunteers and mentors. 

 

J. The School shall require all employees and the members of the Governing Board to be 

fingerprinted by an authorized law enforcement agency or an employee of the School or 

Sponsor who is trained to take fingerprints, pursuant to section 1002.33(12), Florida 

Statutes. The cost of fingerprinting shall be borne by the School or the individual being 

fingerprinted. The results of all such background investigations and fingerprinting will be 

reported in writing to the Superintendent of Schools or his or her designee. No School 

employee or member of the Governing Board may be on campus with students until his or 

Page 197 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

her fingerprints are processed and cleared. The School shall ensure that it complies with 

all fingerprinting and background check requirements, including those relating to vendors, 

pursuant to, sections 1012.32, 1012.465, 1012.467, and 1012.468, Florida Statutes, and 

shall follow Sponsor's policy with regard to the fingerprinting and background check 

requirements of volunteers. The School shall notify the District’s Human Resource 

Department when a staff member is no longer employed at the School. 

 

The School shall require all employees and Board members to self-report within 48 hours 

to appropriate authorities any arrest and final disposition of such arrest other than minor 

traffic violations. The School shall then take appropriate action relating to the employment 

of that individual. 

 

K. The School shall not violate the anti-discrimination provisions of section 1000.05, 

Florida Statutes, and the Florida Education Equity Act. 

 

Section 11: Required Reports and Documents 

 

 The Sponsor and School shall agree upon submission deadlines for the following required 

documents. 

 

A. Monthly 

 

1. Financial Reports, per State Board of Education Rule (quarterly if School is 

designated High-Performing pursuant to section 1002.331, Florida Statute.) 

 

2. Governing Board meeting agenda and minutes 

 

B. Annual 

 

1. Annual Student Achievement Report 

 

2. Annual Financial Audit 

 

3. Program Cost Report 

 

4. Annual Inventory Report [capital purchases with public funds] 

 

5. Policies and Procedures of the school [if materially revised] 

 

6. School based Student Code of Conduct [if materially revised] 

 

7. Dismissal Policies and Procedures [if materially revised] 

 

8. Crisis Response Plan [if materially revised] 

 

9. Employee Handbook [if materially revised] 

Page 198 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

 

10. Current List of members of the Governing Board and Principal 

 

11. School’s Parental Contract [if materially revised] 

 

12. Projected Enrollment [for subsequent school year] 

 

13. Capacity [for subsequent school year] 

 

14. School Calendar [for subsequent school year] if different than the District 

 

15. Evidence of Insurance 

 

16. Management Organization Agreement [if materially revised] 

 

17. Student Progression Plan [if materially revised] 

 

C. The Sponsor may request additional reports if the request is provided in writing and 

provides reasonable and specific justification. 

 

D. In connection with its oversight responsibilities, the District may provide information, 

upon request, to third parties, including creditors and other parties doing business with the 

School, regarding (i) the School’s compliance with its reporting obligations and other 

obligations hereunder or under applicable law, (ii) the status of the School’s charter, and 

(iii) any disciplinary action that has been taken, including the existence of any Corrective 

Action Plan and the School’s compliance with the requirements thereof. 

 

Section 12: Miscellaneous Provisions 

 

A. Impossibility 

 

Neither party shall be in default of this Charter, if the performance of any or all of this 

Charter is prevented, delayed, hindered or otherwise made impracticable or impossible by 

reason of any strike, flood, hurricane, riot, fire, explosion, war, act of God, sabotage or any 

other casualty or cause beyond either party’s control, and which cannot be overcome by 

reasonable diligence and without unusual expense. 

 

B. Drug Free Workplace: The School shall be a drug-free workplace, as provided by State and 

Federal law.  

 

C. Entire Agreement 

 

This Charter shall constitute the full, entire, and complete agreement between the parties 

hereto. All prior representations, understandings and agreements whether written or oral 

are superseded and replaced by this Charter. This Charter may be altered, changed, added 

to, deleted from or modified only through the voluntary, mutual written consent of the 

Page 199 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

parties. Any amendment to this Charter shall require approval of the Sponsor and the 

Governing Board. 

 

D. No Assignment without Consent 

 

This Charter shall not be assigned by either party without mutual written consent. 

 

E. No Waiver 

 

No waiver of any provision of this Charter shall be deemed or shall constitute a waiver of 

any other provision unless expressly stated. The failure of either party to insist in any one 

or more instances upon the strict performance of any one or more of the provisions of this 

Charter shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of said term or provision, and 

the same shall continue in full force and effect. No waiver or relinquishment to any 

provision of this Charter shall be deemed to have been made by either party unless in 

writing and signed by the parties. 

 

F. Default Including Opportunity to Cure 

 

In the event that the School should default under any provision hereto, absent any 

circumstance permitting immediate termination, the School shall have thirty (30) days 

from written notice of default to cure, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties in writing. 

 

G. Survival Including Post Termination of Charter: All representations and warranties made 

herein shall survive termination of this Charter. 

 

 

H. Severability: If any provision or any part of this Charter is determined to be unlawful, 

void, or invalid, that determination shall not affect any other provision or any part of any 

other provision of this Charter and all such provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

I. Third Party Beneficiary:  This Charter is not intended to create any rights in a third party 

beneficiary. 

 

J. Choice of Laws, Jurisdiction and Venue of Disputes and Waiver of Jury Trial 

 

This Charter is made and entered into in the County and shall be interpreted according to 

the laws of the State.  The exclusive jurisdiction and venue for any litigation between the 

parties arising out of or related to this Charter, shall be the Circuit Court, the County Court 

in and for the County, or the appropriate appellate or federal court except as otherwise 

provided for resolution of disputes pursuant to section 1002.33(7)(b), Florida Statutes.  

The parties forever waive the right to trial by jury for any and all litigation between the 

parties arising out of or related to this Charter.  The parties agree to have any such dispute 

settled by a judge alone, without a jury. 

 

K. Notice 

Page 200 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

 

Official correspondence between the School and the District shall be in writing, and signed 

by an officer of the Governing Board or the Principal of the School. Every notice, 

approval, consent or other communication authorized or required by this Charter shall not 

be effective unless same shall be in writing and sent postage prepaid by United States mail, 

directed to the other party at its address hereinafter provided or such other address as either 

party may designate by notice from time to time in accordance herewith: 

 

 

1. Notices to the School: 
 

St. Johns Classical Academy 

Attn: Governing Board Chair 

114 Canova Road 

Fleming Island, FL 32003 

 

Shawn Arnold Law Firm 

 

2. Notices to the Sponsor 

 

The School Board of Clay County, Florida 

Attn: Superintendent 

900 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

 

With copies to 

James Bickner 

SBCC School Board Attorney 

 

 

Notice may also be given by email to the email addresses provided by the parties subject to 

verbal or written confirmation of receipt. 

 

Each of the persons executing this Charter represents and warrants that he or she has the 

full power and authority to execute the Charter on behalf of the party for whom he or she 

signs and that he or she enters into this Charter of his or her own free will and accord and 

in accordance with his or her own judgment, and after consulting with anyone of his or 

her own choosing, including but not limited to his or her attorney. 

 

L. Conflict Between Charter and Florida Law 

 

In any case where this charter conflicts with Florida law, the terms of the applicable 

Florida Statute, State Board Rule, or case law will control over the Charter. 

 

M. Conflict or Dispute Resolution 

 

Page 201 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

Subject to the applicable provisions of section 1002.33, Florida Statutes, as amended from 

time to time, all disagreements and disputes relating to or arising out of this Charter which 

the parties are unable to resolve informally, may be resolved according to the following 

dispute resolution process, unless otherwise directed or provided for in the 

aforementioned statute. Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the Sponsor’s ability to 

immediately terminate this Charter in accordance with section 1002.33(8)(c), Florida 

Statutes.  It is anticipated that a continuing policy of open communication between the 

Sponsor and the School will prevent the need for implementing a conflict or dispute 

resolution procedure. 

 

The following dispute resolution process, not otherwise pre‐empted by section 1002.33, 

Florida Statutes, shall be equally applicable to both parties to this Charter in the event of 

a dispute. All disagreements and disputes relating to or arising out of this Charter which 

the parties are unable to resolve informally, may be resolved according to the following 

dispute resolution process: 

 

Step 1 ‐‐ The persons having responsibility for implementing this Charter for the grieving 

party will write to the other party to identify the problem, propose action to correct the 

problem and explain reasons for the proposed action. 

 

Step 2 ‐‐ The person having responsibility for implementing this Charter for the other 

party will respond in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days, accepting the proposed 

action or offering alternative solution(s) to the problem. A meeting of representatives of 

the parties may be held to reach agreement on the solution and subsequent action. 

 

Step 3 ‐‐ Upon resolution of the problem, the responsible personnel from both parties will 

develop a joint written explanation indicating the resolution. This document will be 

retained with this Charter. If an amendment to the Charter is necessary, the amendment 

will be submitted for action by both parties. 

 

Step 4 ‐‐ If efforts at agreement within a reasonable time are unsuccessful, the parties may 

have recourse to their available legal remedies, including, without limitation, mediation 

through the FDOE or those additional remedies set forth in section 1002.33(7)(b), Florida 

Statutes. 

 

N. Citations 

 

Whenever a Florida Statute or State Board of Education Rule is referenced in this Charter, 

it shall be construed to mean the statute or rule as it is amended from time to time. 

 

The Sponsor’s policies will not control this Charter or be incorporated herein absent 

written consent of the Governing Board, as provided by Florida law, unless the School 

agreed to such policies in the approved Application or otherwise agreed to by the 

Governing Board in writing. 

 

If the Sponsor subsequently amends any agreed-upon Sponsor policy the version of the 

Page 202 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

policy in effect at the time of the execution of the charter, or any subsequent modification 

thereof, shall remain in effect and the Sponsor may not hold the School responsible for 

any provision of a newly revised policy unless the revised policy is mutually agreed upon. 

 

Upon the Sponsor’s revision of a mutually agreed upon Sponsor policy, the Sponsor shall 

provide written notification to the School and Governing Board. The written notification 

shall include the revised policy and shall allow the Governing Board 45 days to reject the 

revised policy. If the Governing Board does not provide written notice of its rejection of 

the policy, the revised policy is deemed accepted by the Governing Board. If the 

Governing Board rejects the revised policy it shall remain bound by the policy as it existed 

at the time the Governing Board agreed to it. 

 

O. Interpretation 

 

The headings in the Charter are for convenience and reference only and in no way define, 

limit or describe the scope of the Charter and shall not be considered in the interpretation 

of the Charter or any provision hereof.  This Charter is the product of negotiation between 

the parties and therefore the terms of this Charter shall not be construed against either 

party as the drafter. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Charter, effective as of the 

day and year first above written: 

 

SCHOOL: ST. JOHNS CLASSICAL ACADEMY 

 

 

By: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 , President       Date 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

 

By: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 , Secretary   Date 

 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

 

Page 203 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

By: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 , Board Chair       Date 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

By: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 , Superintendent      Date 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

By: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 , Esq.             Date 

  

Page 204 of 434

DRAFT



 

 

 

Appendices 

 

1. The Application 

 

2. Governance Documents 

 

3. ELL Plan, if different than Sponsors 

 

4. Management Contract (if applicable) 

 

Page 205 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - St Petersburg College Student Teaching Affiliation Agreement

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and St. Petersburg College (SPC), College of Education. For SPC
students to participate in internships, practicums, and observations under the direction of a certified educator in Clay County
schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, interns and pre-interns cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would thereby prevent
potential teacher candidates from choosing Clay to begin their career.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has agreements with 25 Colleges/Universities, and this is the first agreement with St.
Petersburg College.

Expected Outcomes
Placement of interns provides teacher candidates with real-world experiences that better prepares them for the rigors of
classroom teaching.  SPC is currently requesting the placement of one student.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.  
 
Strategy 5.1: Recruit, screen, hire, and retain top candidates that reflect the diversity of each school, our district, and community.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between Clay County District Schools and St. Petersburg College,
College of Education.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

220075 St Petersburg Col of Ed.pdf

Page 206 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220075-st-petersburg-col-of-ed.pdf


Page 207 of 434

DRAFT



Page 208 of 434

DRAFT



Page 209 of 434

DRAFT



Page 210 of 434

DRAFT



Page 211 of 434

DRAFT



Page 212 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - National Center on Education and the Economy’s National Institute for School Leadership (NISL) Program Agreement

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and National Center on Education and the Economy to provide
professional learning for distinguished school and district leaders through the National Institute for School Leadership (NISL)
Program.  
NISL is the most widely used school leadership curriculum in the country, allowing districts to empower leaders to drive
strategic, systemic improvements in their schools. District and School leaders gain the skills, tools and knowledge necessary to
become true instructional leaders and apply them through action learning, change management, and distributed leadership.
NISL will equip school leaders with the skills, knowledge and tools to create strategies for raising school performance, driving
effective teaching and supporting student learning through structures and incentives, aligning instructional systems, and
implementing high performance management structures that drive growth.
 

Gap Analysis
School and district leaders are in need of high quality learning opportunities to help them continue to grow in their instructional
leadership. This is important because school leaders play a significant role in fostering high levels of student achievement, and
strengthening the leadership foundation can have long lasting effects on student achievement.  After going through this nationally
recognized program, district and school leaders will be better equipped to engage in strategic leadership to increase student
performance and drive growth throughout the district.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools has provided a previous opportunity for school leaders to go through the NISL professional
learning program. Two of these leaders are current principals and have reported a significant learning gain as a result of their
experience in this program.

Expected Outcomes
District and school leaders who go through this program will have a deep understanding of how to drive strategic, systemic
improvements in schools and throughout the district.  They will be able to implement action steps consistent with strong
instructional leadership and develop a distributed leadership approach to fostering growth for teachers and students through
collaborative learning cultures.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.  
 
Strategy 5.2: Provide ongoing training and support for teachers, support staff, and leaders.
 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between Clay County District Schools and the National Center on
Education and the Economy’s National Institute for School Leadership (NISL) Program.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$262,500.00 (ESSER III Funds 445.6400310.9009.0000.4910.803.2)

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 213 of 434

DRAFT



220096 National Center on Education & Economy.pdf

Page 214 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220096-national-center-on-education-economy.pdf


Page 215 of 434

DRAFT



Page 216 of 434

DRAFT



Page 217 of 434

DRAFT



Page 218 of 434

DRAFT



Page 219 of 434

DRAFT



Page 220 of 434

DRAFT



Page 221 of 434

DRAFT



Page 222 of 434

DRAFT



Page 223 of 434

DRAFT



Page 224 of 434

DRAFT



Page 225 of 434

DRAFT



Page 226 of 434

DRAFT



Page 227 of 434

DRAFT



Page 228 of 434

DRAFT



Page 229 of 434

DRAFT



Page 230 of 434

DRAFT



Page 231 of 434

DRAFT



Page 232 of 434

DRAFT



Page 233 of 434

DRAFT



Page 234 of 434

DRAFT



Page 235 of 434

DRAFT



Page 236 of 434

DRAFT



Page 237 of 434

DRAFT



Page 238 of 434

DRAFT



Page 239 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Proclamation #22-12 to Establish School Social Work Week

Description
Proclamation of School Social Work Week March 6-12, 2022

Gap Analysis
Recognizes the contributions of school social workers in supporting the academic success of our students.

Previous Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County recognized and appreciated the contributions of school social workers.

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will recognize and further support the work of school social workers and their provision of services
that assist students and families in overcoming barriers to academic success.

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Heather McDonald 904-336-6900 heather.mcdonald@myoneclay.net; Laura Fogarty 904-336-6513

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

2022 School Social Work Week Proclamation.docx.pdf

Page 240 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-school-social-work-week-proclamationdocx_1.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROCLAMATION # 22-12

WHEREAS, school social workers in Clay County serve as vital members of the educational team,
playing a central role in creating a positive environment at schools; and

WHEREAS, school social workers in Clay County are especially skilled in identifying and providing
services to students who face serious challenges to school success, including poverty, disability,
discrimination, abuse, addiction, bullying, loss of a loved one, and other barriers to learning; and

WHEREAS, school districts and local educational agencies should continue to work with school
social workers to address students’ social, emotional, physical, mental health, and environmental
needs so that students may achieve academic success.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby
recognize the importance and hard work of school social workers, and extend greetings and best
wishes to all observing March 6-12, 2022 as School Social Work Week.

Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 3rd day of
March, 2022.

ATTEST:

_________________________________ ____________________________________
David S. Broskie Mary Bolla, School Board Chair
Superintendent of Schools
Clay County, Florida

Page 241 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2021-22

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2021-2022 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment

Review Comments

Attachments

21 22 Allocation Summary -March 3, 2022.pdf

Page 242 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/21-22-allocation-summary-march-3-2022_2.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS   

2021-2022 SUMMARY 

Board Meeting, March 3, 2022

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2021-2022 ACTIONS

Food and Nutrition Services (410/7600)

OVE-0621 1.0 Cafeteria Assistant (5.00 hours) Program Needs $11,544 $3,725 $15,269

POE-0651 1.0 Cafeteria Assistant (4.00 hours) Program Needs $9,235 $2,980 $12,215

TES-0501 1.0 Cafeteria Assistant (7.00 hours) Program Needs ($16,162) ($5,215) ($21,377)

TES-0501 1.0 Cafeteria Assistant (6.75 hours) Program Needs ($15,584) ($5,029) ($20,613)

TES-0501 1.0 Cafeteria Assistant (5.50 hours) Program Needs ($12,698) ($4,098) ($16,796)

TES-0501 1.0 Cafeteria Van Driver (6.75 hours) Program Needs ($16,696) ($5,388) ($22,084)

TES-0501 1.0 Cafeteria Van Driver (7.25 hours) Program Needs $17,933 $5,787 $23,720

TES-0501 1.0 Cafeteria Assistant (6.25 hours) Program Needs $14,430 $4,657 $19,087

TES-0501 2.0 Cafeteria Assistant (7.50 hours) Program Needs $34,632 $11,176 $45,808

TOTAL: $26,634 $8,595 $35,229

Pending Board Approval 03/03/2022

Page 243 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Monthly Financial Reports for January, 2022

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending January 31, 2022.

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.
 

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Strategy 2.4:  Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for January,
2022.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

Jan 2022 Board Monthly Financial Report.pdf

Jan 2022 Board Monthly Property Report.pdf

Contracts 50 Thousand and Greater.pdf

Page 244 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/jan-2022-board-monthly-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/jan-2022-board-monthly-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greater_6.pdf


Page 245 of 434

DRAFT



Page 246 of 434

DRAFT



Page 247 of 434

DRAFT



Page 248 of 434

DRAFT



Page 249 of 434

DRAFT



Page 250 of 434

DRAFT



Page 251 of 434

DRAFT



Page 252 of 434

DRAFT



Page 253 of 434

DRAFT



Page 254 of 434

DRAFT



Page 255 of 434

DRAFT



Page 256 of 434

DRAFT



Page 257 of 434

DRAFT



Page 258 of 434

DRAFT



Page 259 of 434

DRAFT



Page 260 of 434

DRAFT



Page 261 of 434

DRAFT



Page 262 of 434

DRAFT



Page 263 of 434

DRAFT



Page 264 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Budget Amendment Report for January 31, 2022

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006. 

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for  January 2022 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

Budget Amendment January 2022.pdf

Page 265 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-january-2022_1.pdf


Page 266 of 434

DRAFT



Page 267 of 434

DRAFT



Page 268 of 434

DRAFT



Page 269 of 434

DRAFT



Page 270 of 434

DRAFT



Page 271 of 434

DRAFT



Page 272 of 434

DRAFT



Page 273 of 434

DRAFT



Page 274 of 434

DRAFT



Page 275 of 434

DRAFT



Page 276 of 434

DRAFT



Page 277 of 434

DRAFT



Page 278 of 434

DRAFT



Page 279 of 434

DRAFT



Page 280 of 434

DRAFT



Page 281 of 434

DRAFT



Page 282 of 434

DRAFT



Page 283 of 434

DRAFT



Page 284 of 434

DRAFT



Page 285 of 434

DRAFT



Page 286 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - February, 2022

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted.  These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair.  These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated.  Deletions are for property items received in
the month of January, 2022.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05.

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal.  Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes.  All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability. 

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - February, 2022 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property.  Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

Deletion Report-February, 2022.pdf

Page 287 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-february-2022.pdf


Depreciation

02/28/2022

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0111 BANNERMAN LEARNING CENTER

2,191.12 2,191.12COUNTER: UTILITY HEAVY DUTY 28 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 09/08/200500084314
8,225.59 8,225.59HOT FOOD 5 WELLS 79 " 120/60/1 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 09/08/200500084535
3,270.08 3,270.08MODULE: CASHIER 50 " DW" Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 09/08/200500084539
7,879.64 7,879.64SALAD BAR: NSF7 REFRIGERATED 5 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 09/08/200500084550

21,566.4321,566.43

LCTN 0311 KEYSTONE HEIGHTS JR/SR HIGH
1,086.00 1,086.00UNIT CASHIER Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 08/18/199200045984
1,018.00 1,018.00TABLE MOBILE UTILITY SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 05/17/199400058361
1,018.00 1,018.00TABLE MOBILE UTILITY SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 05/17/199400058364
1,018.00 1,018.00TABLE MOBILE UTILITY SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 05/17/199400058366
1,224.52 1,224.52UNIT MOBILE CASHIER Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 03/25/199600062384
4,090.00 4,090.00SERVING UNIT:HOT FOOD W/ACCESS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 08/14/200300079232
6,092.89 6,092.89SERVING COUNTER: ATLAS HOT FOO Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 08/25/200500084163
1,130.30 1,130.30CASE - POWERSYNC (IPODS) - BRE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 08/12/201011000014

16,677.7116,677.71

LCTN 0341 CLAY HIGH SCHOOL
2,977.00 2,977.00PASS THRU REFRIGERATOR Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 04/22/198800044779
7,669.33 7,669.33SERVER: COLD FOOD-COLORPOINT 5 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 12/15/201112000375
8,320.06 8,320.06SERVER: HOT FOOD-COLORPOINT EF Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 12/15/201112000376
2,981.03 2,981.03CASHIER STATION: COLORPOINT CP Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 12/15/201112000377
2,981.03 2,981.03CASHIER STATION: COLORPOINT CP Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 12/15/201112000378
8,320.06 8,320.06SERVER: HOT FOOD-COLORPOINT EF Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 12/15/201112000379
7,495.88 5,354.20SEVER: HOT FOOD - RANDELL RANF Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 06/19/201414001283
9,091.44 6,493.89SERVER: COLD FOOD-RANDELL RANF Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 06/19/201414001284

45,096.6049,835.83

LCTN 0351 LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH
2,195.00 2,195.00CABINET:HEATED TRANSPORT - CRE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 01/13/200500079243

2,195.002,195.00

LCTN 0371 WILKINSON JR HIGH
2,498.06 2,498.06TABLE:FOOD HOT MOBILE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 07/08/198000024401
1,235.00 1,235.00UNIT:MOBILE CASHIER STAND Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 05/17/199400058374
3,015.00 3,015.00TABLE: MOBILE W/5 HOT WELLS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 02/22/199500059190

02/28/202202/01/2022Date Range 110:30:3102/02/2022 Page 288 of 434

DRAFT



Depreciation

02/28/2022

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
3,015.00 3,015.00TABLE: MOBILE W/5HOT WELLS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 02/22/199500059191

9,763.069,763.06

LCTN 0381 MONTCLAIR ELEMENTARY
6,249.25 6,249.25MOWER:60" DECK HYDRO GRAVELY Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 10/10/200200075547

6,249.256,249.25

LCTN 0411 CLAY HILL ELEMENTARY
1,520.00 1,520.00TABLE:UTILITY SERVING MOBILE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 04/30/198400035490
1,072.34 1,072.34STAND:CASHIER MOBILE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 04/30/198400035491
1,959.00 1,959.00TABLE:MOBILE UTILITY SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 06/20/198800045007

4,551.344,551.34

LCTN 0471 ROBERT M PATERSON ELEMENTARY
1,692.00 1,692.00TABLE SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 08/18/199200045971
1,692.00 1,692.00TABLE SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 08/18/199200045975
1,086.00 1,086.00STAND CASHIERS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 08/18/199200045983
3,015.00 3,015.00UNIT:MOBILE HOT SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 05/17/199400058379
3,015.00 3,015.00UNIT MOBILE W/5 HOT WELLS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 02/22/199500059194

10,500.0010,500.00

LCTN 0491 WILKINSON ELEMENTARY
1,223.00 1,223.00UNIT/STAND CASHIER Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 05/17/199300040223

1,223.001,223.00

LCTN 0501 TYNES ELEMENTARY
2,756.00 2,756.00MACHINE:ICE SCOTSMAN W/BIN Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  02/01/2022 05/12/199400058299

2,756.002,756.00

LCTN 0541 RIDEOUT ELEMENTARY
1,018.00 1,018.00TABLE MOBILE UTILITY SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 05/17/199400058363
3,665.00 3,665.00SERVING UNIT:BLH 5 HOT FOOD W/ Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 09/14/200000072210
3,665.00 3,665.00UNIT:PRECISION HOT FOOD 5 COMP Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 02/22/200100072227
2,421.00 2,421.00TABLE:5 UTILITY W/CAMLOCKS STA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 02/22/200100072230
1,700.00 1,700.00STAND:PRECISION CASHIER W/ACCE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 02/22/200100072231

12,469.0012,469.00

LCTN 0551 FLEMING ISLAND HIGH SCHOOL

02/28/202202/01/2022Date Range 210:30:3102/02/2022 Page 289 of 434

DRAFT



Depreciation

02/28/2022

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
4,995.00 4,995.00SCRUBBER: MINUTEMAN AUTO FLOOR Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 06/26/200300071836
2,876.42 2,876.42TABLE:SCORING 12 BLEACHER STYL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 11/10/200400080722
1,190.82 1,190.82BIKE: EXERCISE LARGE - PRO GAM Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 05/08/200800092068
2,675.00 2,675.00TREADMILL: PRO 5HP - STAR TRAC Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 05/22/200800092082

11,534.22 11,534.22SCRUBBER: BOOST RIDER - CLARKE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 10/08/200910000130
1,196.00 1,196.00COPIER: DIGITAL - RICOH MP201S Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  02/01/2022 11/30/201112000164
2,294.15 2,294.15SWEEPER: AUTO - TENNANT #3610 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 04/12/201212000489

26,761.6126,761.61

LCTN 0571 SWIMMING PEN CREEK ELEMENTARY
1,615.00 1,615.00TABLE UTILITY SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 06/01/199300040215
2,935.92 2,935.92LINE:COLD SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 08/26/200400079236
4,704.68 4,704.68LINE:HEATED SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 08/26/200400079237
2,195.00 2,195.00CABINET:HEATED FOOD STORAGE - Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 07/22/200400081983
2,195.00 2,195.00CABINET:HEATED FOOD STORAGE - Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 07/22/200400081984
4,246.24 2,224.22CASHIER STATION - RANDELL RANF Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 10/22/201516000030

15,869.8217,891.84

LCTN 0631 SHADOWLAWN ELEMENTARY
3,468.65 3,468.65SIGN: ELECTRONIC FLOOR  - DEMC Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 07/24/200800096522
3,468.66 3,468.66SIGN: ELECTRONIC FLOOR - DEMCO Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 07/24/200800096523

6,937.316,937.31

LCTN 9006 DEPT OF ELEMENTARY EDUCATION
1,518.00 1,518.00IMAC: APPLE 21.5 " MK452LL/A" Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  02/01/2022 05/12/201616000619

1,518.001,518.00

LCTN 9040 INFORMATION AND TECH SERVICES
13,394.79 13,394.79DRIVE ENCLOSURE-DELL POWERVAUL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  02/01/2022 09/24/200910000089

13,394.7913,394.79

02/28/202202/01/2022Date Range 310:30:3102/02/2022 Page 290 of 434

DRAFT



Depreciation

02/28/2022

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method

204,290.17
Totals for Deletion Report

197,528.92

Note: JANUARY 2022 DELETIONS
Disposal Method Descriptions:

JUNK/PARTS - Part(s) of an asset are used and remainder of part(s) are sold, recycled or disposed

TRADE-IN - Vendor issues a credit towards a new purchase

THEFT/VANDALISM - Items stolen or broken (police report attached)

MISSING - Items lost and are not found during property inventory (Annually)

SURPLUS SALE - Items that are outdated, not working or obsolete.  Items are either sold, recycled or disposed

ENTERED IN ERROR- Not used

TRANSFER/DONATION - From Clay County District to an Outside Agency (Approved by Board or Superintendent)

DESTROYED - Fire/Natural Disaster, etc.

Total Software
0.00

Total Audio Visual
0.00

Total Vehicles
0.00

Total Furniture
204,290.17

THRESHOLD (ex. $750 TO $1000)

02/28/202202/01/2022Date Range 410:30:3102/02/2022 Page 291 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - BID to be Awarded

Description
Award BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Integrated Pest Management - County Wide Bid #22-MA-321:  Contract Period is for a three (3) year contract period from
March 31, 2022 through March 30, 2025 with the option to renew for an additional contract period upon mutual agreement, in
writing. Bid established for the purpose of qualified labor, equipment and supervision to incorporate Integrated Pest Management
(IPM) procedures to prevent unacceptable levels of pest activity and damage by the most economical means and with the least
possible hazard to people, property, and the environment at all schools and facilities within the District. Two bids were submitted
and evaluated by the Purchasing Department. The lowest bid was determined by the Maintenance Department as qualified to do
the work specified.  The vendor awarded is the lowest, responsive and responsible bid.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
No prior bids have been awarded for this type of service, it was previously done in-house.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the vendor to provide quality services and products at the terms and conditions listed in
the Bid.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2;  Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Award BID as follows:
a. Integrated Pest Management - County Wide Bid #22-MA-321:

RENTOKIL dba Florida Pest Control, 5213 Wesconnett Blvd., Jacksonville, FL  32210-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Integrated Pest Management - County Wide Bid #22-MA-321:  The total annual spend is estimated at $50,000.00 from
General and Federal Revenue, for a total estimated value of $150,000.00 for the entirety of the three (3) year contract period

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 292 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Contract Renewal – County Wide Architectural Services up to $2 Million

Description
Renew Contract as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
County-Wide Architectural Services: Architect/Engineer Agreement:  Contract Period is April 3, 2022 through April 2, 2023.
The contract period is for 1 year and is the second and final renewal option.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Contract was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and
products to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original Contract was awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2; Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
County-Wide Architectural Services: Architect/Engineer Agreement: 

Brian Boatright Architect, Inc., 914 Plainfield Avenue, Orange Park, FL  32074-
Bhide and Hall Architects, P.A., 1329 Kingsley Ave Ste C, Orange Park, FL 32073-
Ebert Norman Brady Architects, 1361 13th Ave S., Suite 230, Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250-
Kasper Architects and Associates, 10175 Fortune Parkway, #701, Jacksonville, FL 32256-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
All funding necessary for the Architectural fees resulting from this contract are budgeted within the Educational Facilities Plan.
Fiscal impact will be based on the budget of the individual projects.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 293 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Transportation Radio System Refresh

Description
This will allow the district to upgrade its outdated radio system to a state-of-the-art 800MHz Public Safety Radio System
allowing for improved communication.  Implementation of this system will allow significant expansion to radio system coverage
and improve radio communication quality throughout the county with the ability to configure multiple voice channels all while
increasing overall transportation efficiency.  Communication reliability between district Transportation staff will be greatly
improved.
These radios, in tandem with the interlocal agreement with the Board of County Commissioners for use of their radio system,
will allow for an efficient way for the School Board Transportation dispatch system to be brought up to date while allowing two-
way communication capabilities between the County and Clay County School District, especially in the event of an emergency.  

Gap Analysis
The Clay County School District Transportation Department is in critical need of upgrades to its end-of-life and end-of-support
radio dispatching system.  Communication between district Transportation staff will be greatly improved.    

Previous Outcomes
The School Board approved previous upgrades in the past.  

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the Contract.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County stakeholders. 

Recommendation
Approve upgrading Transportation’s Public Safety Radio System with Motorola Solutions.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The estimated cost is $755,000.  This will be funded with 1 Mil Ad Valorem.  Procurement per NASPO Public Safety
Communication Products, Services, and Solutions Motorola Products and Pricing Sheet, Pending Florida Participation (State
Contract #_______) (Placeholder)

Review Comments

Attachments

Motorola Solutions.pdf

Page 294 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/motorola-solutions.pdf


Page 295 of 434

DRAFT



Page 296 of 434

DRAFT



Page 297 of 434

DRAFT



Page 298 of 434

DRAFT



Page 299 of 434

DRAFT



Page 300 of 434

DRAFT



Page 301 of 434

DRAFT



Page 302 of 434

DRAFT



Page 303 of 434

DRAFT



Page 304 of 434

DRAFT



Page 305 of 434

DRAFT



Page 306 of 434

DRAFT



Page 307 of 434

DRAFT



Page 308 of 434

DRAFT



Page 309 of 434

DRAFT



Page 310 of 434

DRAFT



Page 311 of 434

DRAFT



Page 312 of 434

DRAFT



Page 313 of 434

DRAFT



Page 314 of 434

DRAFT



Page 315 of 434

DRAFT



Page 316 of 434

DRAFT



Page 317 of 434

DRAFT



Page 318 of 434

DRAFT



Page 319 of 434

DRAFT



Page 320 of 434

DRAFT



Page 321 of 434

DRAFT



Page 322 of 434

DRAFT



Page 323 of 434

DRAFT



Page 324 of 434

DRAFT



Page 325 of 434

DRAFT



Page 326 of 434

DRAFT



Page 327 of 434

DRAFT



Page 328 of 434

DRAFT



Page 329 of 434

DRAFT



Page 330 of 434

DRAFT



Page 331 of 434

DRAFT



Page 332 of 434

DRAFT



Page 333 of 434

DRAFT



Page 334 of 434

DRAFT



Page 335 of 434

DRAFT



Page 336 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Interlocal Agreement with the Board of County Commissioners for Transportation Radios with Motorola Solutions

Description
This interlocal agreement with the Board of County Commissioners will allow Clay County School District’s Transportation
Department use of their radio system.  Implementation of the school district’s upgraded radio system will allow significant
expansion to radio system coverage and improve radio communication quality throughout the county with the ability to configure
multiple voice channels all while increasing overall transportation efficiency. 
The enhanced relationship with the County will be especially important during disaster recovery as Public Services coordinates
the transition from emergency repairs to long-term restoration activities under Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) Emergency Support Function #3-Public Works and Engineering. The School Board's use of the Radio System is related
to its school bus transportation program and communications involving transportation during emergency type events such as
countywide evacuations.
The County grants permission for the School Board to operate up to 256 mobile and/or portable radios and 2 consoles on the
Radio System with up to 5 talk groups/channels. This permission may be modified and/or amended throughout the term(s) of
this Agreement upon mutual written agreement of the County and the School Board.

Gap Analysis
The ability to have a reliable and efficient communication system is of utmost importance when it comes to the safety of our
students, staff, and stakeholders. 

Previous Outcomes
Other districts currently operate under this same model. 

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the Interlocal Agreement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve the Interlocal Agreement with the Board of County Commissioners for Transportation Radios with Motorola Solutions.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The cost of this agreement will include an annual user fee based on proportionate share.  Currently, the first year subscriber,
maintenance, and operations cost is $65,304.60/annually.  This will be funded by 1 Mil Ad Valorem.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 337 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district. The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF). The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month. As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status. Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 3.3.22.pdf

Page 338 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-3322.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Michael Kemp, Phil Hans, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-qualification 
certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Foresight Construction Group, Inc. General Contractor $20,000,000.00 March 31, 2023 

Gateway Contracting, Inc. General, Mechanical, and 
Plumbing Contractor 

$10,000,000.00 March 31, 2023 

Gary S. Bailey, Inc. Building Contractor $2,000,000.00 March 31, 2023 

Life Safety Designs, Inc. Alarm System Contractor $10,000,000.00 March 31, 2023 

Security Fire & Electronics, Inc. Alarm System and Electrical 
Contractor 

$750,000.00 March 31, 2023 

STG Contracting Group, Inc. General Contractor $70,000,000.00 March 31, 2023 

The Rose Group, LLC General Contractor $750,000.00 March 31, 2023 

Thorne Metal Systems, Inc. Roofing Contractor $2,000,000.00 March 31, 2023 

 

Page 339 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Clay High School Restroom Renovations

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, III) stage. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, III) Plans and Specifications for the Clay High School Restroom
Renovations.  

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan for $600,000.00.  The architect’s cost estimate is $885,995.90.  As a result of
unprecedented construction market conditions associated with the pandemic, this project will be reviewed by the Facility
Planning & Construction department after bid opening to determine funding availability and project feasibility.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 340 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Front Entrance
Security Enhancements

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for the Orange Park High School Front
Entrance Security Enhancements.
 

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan for $1,200,000.00.  The architect’s cost estimate is $1,220,000.00.  As a result of
unprecedented construction market conditions associated with the pandemic, this project will be reviewed by the Facility
Planning & Construction department after bid opening to determine funding availability and project feasibility.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 341 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Middleburg High School Roof
Repair/Replacement (Building 1)

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for the Middleburg High School Roof
Repair/Replacement (Building 1). 

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan for $2,000,000.00.  The architect’s cost estimate is $3,538,380.00.  As a result of
unprecedented construction market conditions associated with the pandemic, this project will be reviewed by the Facility
Planning & Construction department after bid opening to determine funding availability and project feasibility.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 342 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Spring Park Elementary School Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Bid Package 2 (Building Construction and Site Work)

Description
In accordance with the School Board’s contract with Parrish McCall Constructors, Inc., for Construction Management At-Risk
Services for Spring Park Elementary, Parrish McCall Constructors, Inc., presents to the School Board the GMP Bid Package 2
(Building Construction and Site Work) for Spring Park Elementary School. This Bid Package includes building construction and
site work associated with Pre-Engineered Metal Building (PEMB) approved as GMP Bid Package 1.

Gap Analysis
The Agreement the School Board has with the Construction Manager (CM) At-Risk, Parrish McCall Constructors Inc., dated
August 5, 2021, would be amended to establish a separate GMP for Bid Package 2 (Building Construction and Site Work).

Previous Outcomes
The CM At-Risk at Discovery Oaks Elementary utilized multiple GMPs to allow the site work to begin while the building design
was being completed.

Expected Outcomes
GMP Bid Package 2 (Building Construction and Site Work) will allow construction to begin and ensure the foundations will be
in place to accept the pre-engineered metal building ordered in GMP Bid Package 1.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the Spring Park Elementary School Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Bid Package 2 (Building Construction and Site
Work).

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The GMP Bid Package 2 (Building Construction and Site Work) for the project will be provided on February 28, 2022. These
funds are available and will be funded with C.O. & D.S./Impact Fees and LCIF.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 343 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Annual Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) Certification

Description
In accordance with Florida Statutes 1013.31 and State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) Section 6.1, annually,
prior to April 1st, each school district must review the Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) and certify that it is current
and accurate to the Office of Educational Facilities.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The School Board approved prior years’ certifications.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the certification of the 2022 FISH data.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approval of the certification of the 2022 FISH data.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director, Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net,
Lance Addison, Coordinator of Planning & Intergovernmental Affairs, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) Certification.pdf

Page 344 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/florida-inventory-of-school-houses-fish-certification_1.pdf


Page 345 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Change Order #1 for Middleburg Transportation Facility Fuel System Repair/Replacement

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This change order is for materials and labor to install Nupi piping instead of the
specified fiberglass piping due to material shortages.  45 additional calendar days to achieve substantial completion will be
required due to material shortages and longer than average lead times with project materials due to Covid 19.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Change Order # 1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will increase the contract amount by $8,775.00.   Architect fees will increase by $745.88 as a result of this
change order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

MB Transportation Fuel System Repair.Replacement CO 1.pdf

Page 346 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mb-transportation-fuel-system-repairreplacement-co-1_1.pdf


Page 347 of 434

DRAFT



Page 348 of 434

DRAFT



Page 349 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Ridgeview High School Restroom
Renovations

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for the Ridgeview High School Restroom
Renovations.  

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan for $600,000.00.  The architect’s cost estimate is $800,000.00. As a result of
unprecedented construction market conditions associated with the pandemic, this project will be reviewed by the Facility
Planning & Construction department after bid opening to determine funding availability and project feasibility.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 350 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for W. E. Cherry Roofing and Spalling

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for the W. E. Cherry Roofing and Spalling.  

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan for $560,000.00.  The architect’s cost estimate is $282,612.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 351 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Special Action A 3.3.2022.pdf (Confidential)

Page 352 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 353 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 354 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D4 - Human Resources Special Action D

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 355 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D5 - Human Resources Special Action E

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 356 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D6 - Public Hearing and Vote to Approve as Advertised the Adoption of 2021-2022 6-12 Mathematics Materials

Description
The Pre-selection adoption committee was composed of teacher representatives from each school and subject area.  These
certified Clay County District Schools teachers vetted materials for the considered courses using a comprehensive rubric that
aligned curricula to materials.  The committee met on January 3, 2022 and thoroughly reviewed available curriculum options
from the state adoption list. The teams worked to apply rigorous alignment criteria using evaluation tools provided by the
Instructional Resources Department and District Curriculum Specialists to each selection to determine the top products that
would best meet the needs of the students of Clay County. 
In order to finalize the vetting process and produce a final selection, all 6-12 mathematics teachers were asked to provide
feedback about the top choices and the ability of each to meet the needs of their students. In an effort to be as transparent as
possible, the surveys provided detailed information about each product being considered.  Feedback was due to the Instructional
Resources Office by February 1st to allow the District Committee to meet to review feedback and recommendations. 
The products selected for each subject are posted on the Instructional Resources page of the District’s website. The public is
encouraged to view the products and express their individual comments and/or concerns about each one. 
Florida State Statute 1006.283 requires an open, noticed school board hearing to receive public comment on the recommended
instructional materials. The publication of notice allows CCDS to meet this requirement. 

Gap Analysis
Instructional Materials for this subject were adopted during the 2016 Adoption year, with supplemental materials adopted in
2018.

Previous Outcomes
Statute requires a district to adopt within two years of the State’s adoption year.  F.S. 1006.283 Requires a public hearing to be
posted in a publication 28 calendar days prior to the event in order for the public to be made fully aware of the District’s
intentions.

Expected Outcomes
These materials would provide the teachers of Clay County current, quality, and aligned materials to enable them the ability to
deliver and plan engaging lessons, and provide students with the resources to maximize learning and increase student outcomes.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 1: Develop Great Educators and Leaders
Strategy: 1.1: Develop a high quality and aligned instructional system.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the adoption of the recommended 6-12 Mathematics materials.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$3,600,000 In Instructional Materials funding

Review Comments

Attachments

2021-2022 6-12 Mathematics Adoption District Committee Recommendation.pdf

2021-2022 6-12 Mathematics Adoption Teacher Reviews and Results.pdf

Page 357 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-2022-6-12-mathematics-adoption-district-committee-recommendation.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-2022-6-12-mathematics-adoption-teacher-reviews-and-results.pdf


2021-2022 6-12 Mathematics Adoption Preselection Committee Reviews and Results.pdf

Page 358 of 434

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-2022-6-12-mathematics-adoption-preselection-committee-reviews-and-results.pdf


2021-22 6-12 Mathematics Adoption Information
District Committee Recommendation

Link to 6-12 Publisher Materials

Grade Course Title Course 
Number Top Choices Per Teacher Feedback

6 Grade Six Mathematics 1205010 McGraw-Hill Education
Florida Reveal Math G. 6

6 Grade Six Accelerated Mathematics 1205020 McGraw-Hill Education
Florida Reveal Math G. 6 Accelerated

7 Grade Seven Mathematics 1205040 McGraw-Hill Education
Florida Reveal Math G. 6-8

7 Grade Seven Accelerated Mathematics 1205050 McGraw-Hill Education
Florida Reveal Math G. 7 Accelerated

7-8 Grade Eight Mathematics: Pre-Algebra 1205070 McGraw-Hill Education
Florida Reveal Math G. 6-8

9-12 Algebra 1 1200310 McGraw-Hill Education
Florida Reveal Algebra 1

9-12 Algebra 2 1200330
National Geographic Learning Cengage/Big Ideas
Florida's B.E.S.T. Standards for MATH Algebra 2 with CalcChat® and 
CalcView®

9-12 Geometry 1206310 McGraw-Hill Education
Florida Reveal Geometry

9-12 Mathematics for Data and Financial Literacy 
Reg/Honors 1200387 Cengage Learning

Personal Financial Literacy 

9-12 Mathematics for College Algebra 1200700 Houghton Mifflin Harcourt
Young, College Algebra

9-12 Pre-Calculus Honors 1202340 Cengage Learning
PreCalculus with Limits: A Graphing Approach + WebAssign

9-12 Mathematics for College Liberal Arts 1207350 Savvas
Thinking Mathematically 7e c2019 (Blitzer)

9-12 Probability & Statistics w/Applications Honors 1210300 Savvas
Stats in Your World 3e c2020(Bock et al)

Page 359 of 434

DRAFT



Page 360 of 434

DRAFT



Page 361 of 434

DRAFT



Page 362 of 434

DRAFT



Page 363 of 434

DRAFT



Page 364 of 434

DRAFT



Page 365 of 434

DRAFT



Page 366 of 434

DRAFT



Page 367 of 434

DRAFT



Page 368 of 434

DRAFT



Page 369 of 434

DRAFT



Page 370 of 434

DRAFT



Page 371 of 434

DRAFT



Page 372 of 434

DRAFT



Page 373 of 434

DRAFT



Page 374 of 434

DRAFT



Page 375 of 434

DRAFT



Page 376 of 434

DRAFT



Page 377 of 434

DRAFT



Page 378 of 434

DRAFT



Page 379 of 434

DRAFT



Page 380 of 434

DRAFT



Page 381 of 434

DRAFT



Page 382 of 434

DRAFT



Page 383 of 434

DRAFT



Page 384 of 434

DRAFT



Page 385 of 434

DRAFT



Page 386 of 434

DRAFT



Page 387 of 434

DRAFT



Page 388 of 434

DRAFT



Page 389 of 434

DRAFT



Page 390 of 434

DRAFT



Page 391 of 434

DRAFT



Page 392 of 434

DRAFT



Page 393 of 434

DRAFT



Page 394 of 434

DRAFT



Page 395 of 434

DRAFT



Page 396 of 434

DRAFT



Page 397 of 434

DRAFT



Page 398 of 434

DRAFT



Page 399 of 434

DRAFT



Page 400 of 434

DRAFT



Page 401 of 434

DRAFT



Page 402 of 434

DRAFT



Page 403 of 434

DRAFT



Page 404 of 434

DRAFT



Page 405 of 434

DRAFT



Page 406 of 434

DRAFT



Page 407 of 434

DRAFT



Page 408 of 434

DRAFT



Page 409 of 434

DRAFT



Page 410 of 434

DRAFT



Page 411 of 434

DRAFT



Page 412 of 434

DRAFT



Page 413 of 434

DRAFT



Page 414 of 434

DRAFT



Page 415 of 434

DRAFT



Page 416 of 434

DRAFT



Page 417 of 434

DRAFT



Page 418 of 434

DRAFT



Page 419 of 434

DRAFT



Page 420 of 434

DRAFT



Page 421 of 434

DRAFT



Page 422 of 434

DRAFT



Page 423 of 434

DRAFT



Page 424 of 434

DRAFT



Page 425 of 434

DRAFT



Page 426 of 434

DRAFT



Page 427 of 434

DRAFT



Page 428 of 434

DRAFT



Page 429 of 434

DRAFT



Page 430 of 434

DRAFT



Page 431 of 434

DRAFT



Page 432 of 434

DRAFT



Page 433 of 434

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 3, 2022 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D7 - Proposed Allocations for 2022-2023

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2022-23 school year. The
School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes. 

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected on Attachment

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 434 of 434

DRAFT


